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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
($ in thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
March 31,2021 December 31, 2020

ASSETS:
Mortgage-backed securities, at fair value
Pledged to counterparties $ 4,120,500% 3,719,906
Unpledged 218,036 6,989
Total mortgage -backed securities 4,338,536 3,726,895
Cash and cash equivalents 211,436 220,143
Restricted cash 117,155 79,363
Accrued interest receivable 10,852 9,721
Derivative assets, at fair value 95,752 20,999
Receivable for securities sold, pledged to counterparties 154,977 414
Other assets 2,058 516
Total Assets $ 4,930,766% 4,058,051

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES:

Repurchase agreements $ 4,181,680% 3,595,586
Payable for unsettled securities purchased 217,758 -
Dividends payable 6,156 4,970
Derivative liabilities, at fair value 35,057 33,227
Accrued interest payable 921 1,157
Due to affiliates 712 632
Other liabilities 22,306 7,188
Total Liabilities 4,464,590 3,642,760

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock) $1 par valud00,000,00@hares authorized; no shares issued

and outstanding as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 - -
Common Stock) $1 par valué00,000,00@hares authorizéd,410,960

shares issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2D2,028@1%hares issued

and outstanding as of December 31, 2020 944 761
Additional paid-in capital 512,595 432,524
Accumulated deficit (47,363) (17,994)
Total Stockholders' Equity 466,176 415,291
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 4,930,766% 4,058,051

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2021 and 2020
($ in thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2021 2020

Interest income $ 26,856 $ 35,671
Interest expense (1,941) (16,523)
Net interest income 24,915 19,148
Realized losses on mortgage-backed securities (7,397) (28,380)
Unrealized (losses) gains on mortgage-backed securities (88,866) 3,032
Gains (losses) on derivative and other hedging instruments 45,472 (82,858)
Net portfolio loss (25,876) (89,058)
Expenses:

Management fees 1,621 1,377
Allocated overhead 404 347
Accrued incentive compensation 364 (436)
Directors' fees and liability insurance 272 260
Audit, legal and other professional fees 318 255
Direct REIT operating expenses 421 206
Other administrative 93 132
Total expenses 3,493 2,141
Net loss $ (29,369% (91,199)
Basic net loss per share $ (0.34)$ (1.41)
Diluted net loss per share $ (0.34)% (1.41)
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding 85,344,954 64,590,205
Dividends declared per common share $ 0.195$ 0.240

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(Unaudited)
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2021 and 2020
(in thousands)

Additional Retained

Common Stock Paid-in Earnings
Shares Par Value Capital (Deficit) Total
Balances, January 1, 2020 63,062 $ 631 $ 414,998 $ (20,122% 395,507
Net loss - - - (91,199) (91,199)
Cash dividends declared - - (15,670) - (15,670)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public offerings, net 3,171 31 19,416 - 19,447
Stock based awards and amortization 4 - 59 - 59
Balances, March 31, 2020 66,237 $ 662 $ 418,803%  (111,321% 308,144
Balances, January 1, 2021 76,073 $ 761 $ 432,524 % (17,994% 415,291
Net loss - - - (29,369) (29,369)
Cash dividends declared - - (17,226) - (17,226)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public offerings, net 18,248 182 96,726 - 96,908
Stock based awards and amortization 90 1 571 - 572
Balances, March 31, 2021 94,411 % 944 $ 512,595 $ (47,363)% 466,176

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2021 and 2020
($ in thousands)

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (29,3698 (91,199)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Stock based compensation 259 59
Realized and unrealized losses on mortgage-backed securities 96,263 25,348
Realized and unrealized (gains) losses on interest rate swaptions (13,903) 2,589
Realized and unrealized gains on interest rate floors (1,384) -
Realized and unrealized (gains) losses on interest rate swaps (30,053) 54,934
Realized (gains) losses on forward settling to-be-announced securities (574) 7,090
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued interest receivable (1,050) 2,350
Other assets (588) (655)
Accrued interest payable (236) (7,287)
Other liabilities 5,318 (223)
Due to (from) affiliates 80 (102)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 24,763 (7,096)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
From mortgage-backed securities investments:
Purchases (1,764,082) (1,334,350)
Sales 988,523 1,808,867
Principal repayments 123,880 142,259
Payments on net settlement of to-be-announced securities (3,289) (7,602)
Purchase of derivative financial instruments, net of margin cash received (7,385) (45,458)
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (662,353) 563,716
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from repurchase agreements 7,517,156 13,602,710
Principal payments on repurchase agreements (6,931,062) (14,240,566)
Cash dividends (16,030) (15,416)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 96,908 19,447
Shares withheld from employee stock awards for payment of taxes (297) -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 666,675 (633,825)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH 29,085 (77,205)
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, beginning of the period 299,506 278,655
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, end of the period $ 328,591% 201,450
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $ 2,176 $ 23,809
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Securities acquired settled in later period $ 217,758 $ 3,450
Securities sold settled in later period 154,977 -

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)
MARCH 31, 2021

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization and Business Description

Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (“Orchid” or the “Company”), was incorporated in Maryland on August 17,
and2940dgingheipeveesgedf ier@sdingent portfolio consisting of residential mortgage-backed securities
FEMRBHBY) 20F raot Bicabponadioragoa wholly owned subsidiary of Bimini Capital Management, Inc. (“Bimini”).
Norahitbbeg@dn 2ptdqtiomsdate of commencement of operations). From incorporation through November
BAs20E0ss0selid pBbmansivititock to Bimini.

On January 23, 2020, Orchid entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “January 2020 Equity
threlistibytigreAgreamneanhi withhich the Company could offer and sell, from time to time, up to aRCfy06EYAEE
efrehantefdl the Company’s common stock in transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings
gadsaciiately rEgeGdethany issued3tdtyrahares under the January 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement
gross proceedsapproximately&8million, and fast pegsgief approxi@ateljii®n, net of commissions and fees,
its termination in August 2020. prior to

On August 4, 2020, Orchid entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “August 2020 Equity
fouiatab uitmigraesuant jonithich the Company may offer and sell, from time to time, up to arl 20§@Q,e0f
shpebtodfthe Company’s common stock in transactions that are deemed to be “at the market” offerings and
trevatatiioregotiitedugh March 31, 2021, the Company is$0ethé 8dhafes under the August 2020 Equity
Agreement for aggregate gross procgmatexifatel§4h 1 million, and risprbutieds of approxidateiill®n, net of
commissions and fees.

On January 20, 2021, Orchid entered into an underwriting agreement (the “January 2021 Underwriting
Morggresesnitiegith ¢ .J.P. Morgan”), relating to the off@;@0@GaE&hafes of the Company’s common stock.
Morgan purchased the shares of the Company’s common stock frdfd.the Company pursuant to the January
RQPdedistarsiBDper share. In addition, the Company granted J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to purchase up to
1,140,008haresaf #idiionadany’s common stock on the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan
21, 202 eXEneistosindulf theJaffi@ing0od08hares of the Company’s common stock occurred on January 25,
proceeds to the Company of approxiia2fgitiowtheneif offering expenses.

On March 2, 2021, Orchid entered into an underwriting agreement (the “March 2021 Underwriting
relafiggeenties bifetitaniRalda®aoshares of the Company’s common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the
Company’s common stock from tisbaesnphiie pursuant to the March 2021 Underwriting pAgsbameeih atdilition,
Company granted J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to purchase up tb200:00&uavals of the Gempany’s common
the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan exercised in full on Ns4@€k 8N2021. The cl@sktf) dfdBbares
offdren@ofmpany’s common stock occurred on March 5, 2021, with net proceeds to the Comp&fy! mifllion, net
effprimgreataindes. of

COVID-19 Impact

Beginning in mid-March 2020, the global pandemic associated with the novel coronavirus (“COVID-
condfignenbegtatad iegembnaior financial position and results of operations. As a result of the economic,
health and market turmoil brought 5



about by COVID-19, the Agency RMBS market experienced severe dislocations. This resulted in falling
priveinofally fassetuandpuncheasedigreement lenders, resulting in material adverse effects on our results
obngitiiations and to our financial

The Agency RMBS market largely stabilized after the Federal Reserve announced on March 23,
RMB@28rithat).is whnddspuieh aigethdgemoyints needed to support smooth market functioning. As of March
al .ein wealkaTadnRNMBSAtisii&et continues to react to the pandemic and the various measures put in
theaextenstdhdifindheiamarkeiortage markets do not respond favorably to any of these actions, or such
aatibnsissptrimdtioof aspiatetides, and financial condition may continue to be materially adversely
efecieth héhooahtiee Crawgrf geendbact of the COVID-19 pandemic at this time, if the pandemic
nuattiniadly, atrapceffdote oo ly€ompany’s results of future operations, financial position, and liquidity
during 2021.

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying unaudited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
in tRECMIEinGSRiesipiea AR efellinteaaeptieédncial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q
Andandiatgy SlodRegutaitdncBdé all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete
fimemaignsiate ratirddjudimibetopipmrsisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair
pesentajoreqianefbeaneifmiogdethonth period ended March 31, 2021 are not necessarily indicative of
the yesultsndiraj rDacb@bex3eiGte2DDT.

The balance sheet at December 31, 2020 has been derived from the audited financial statements at
of thkeahftatmatiohdard fuitriotdsdesgjlired by GAAP for complete financial statements. For further
sttnematias, aedefoottioéedintireEtb included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2020.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
the estioradds amamouats wh vess thad affesliities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
tradaepbitedfimanciaitstaftierrentsiosrahd expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
Higmifidapgeaatimates. afféiding the accompanying financial statements are the fair values of RMBS and
trerigstiveste Managassaniptiefisvaaderlying the financial statements are reasonable based on the
pdarmmation available as of March 31,

Variable Interest Entities (“VIEs”)

We obtain interests in VIEs through our investments in mortgage-backed securities. Our interests in
natdhesm Hre ae preeedto result in us obtaining a controlling financial interest in these VIEs in the
titnselid4dte thessaiN/ | Be alodnet account for our interest in these VIEs as mortgage-backed securities.
béerNatm@ fegardiiiigpoal investments in mortgage-backed securities. Our maximum exposure to loss for
thege Mikeisibrgayeyingcked securities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on deposit with financial institutions and highly liquid
threlavasttentsr ves atigineltimetwitingrchbse. Restricted cash includes cash pledged as collateral for
teprochings, agreantemtst aaid cthaps and other derivative instruments.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash reported
positidththdbes staterttant tetbfinétiwialsame such amounts shown in the statement of cash flows.

6



(in thousands)

March 31,2021 December 31,

Cash and cash equivalents $ 211,436 $2020 220,143
Restricted cash 117,155 79,363
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 328,591% 299,506

The Company maintains cash balances at three banks and excess margin on account with two
balancdwngsy deaded foderbiysindtitisddinits. The Company has not experienced any losses related to
iesedidlanoemcd hedrpdeatibn insures eligible accounts up to $250,000 per depositor at each financial
nstiivdion arBeghiintegtedasbut are held in separate customer accounts that are segregated from the
Gemepainjuirdiofihimscoedtdrplntyes Theonly large, well-known banks and exchange clearing members
ang biglivfiesntthatatiisrisiot enpastdand cash equivalents or restricted cash balances.

Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company invests primarily in mortgage pass-through (“PT”) residential mortgage backed
Fanegstificaiesr iSauweid MakredRiBA2Y, collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs”), interest-only (“10”)
celjtescwaitibinvermesinidrgsintetgst in or obligations backed by pools of RMBS. We refer to RMBS and
foNOard FD BAdbBGiddasafeuctured RMBS. The Company has elected to account for its investment in
BHiBR. Endetiribatsiralalusiue option requires the Company to record changes in fair value in the statement
nfareeyatitnsts wisieh) nirore appropriately reflects the results of our operations for a particular reporting period
anddsyingsisiendmits thed how the portfolio is managed.

The Company records RMBS transactions on the trade date. Security purchases that have not
are $etilagbds iptheeRMBBCeakiRss déte an offsetting liability recorded, whereas securities sold that have
datsetbedmsvafdhfrolrathedRMB&tbalance with an offsetting receivable recorded.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the
betwiakilittharkat pedtdipadnansactimmeasurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the
transtmtitte thasdlityheittagselcours in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
pdusinabanagahaeetrintibesiestor liability. Estimated fair values for RMBS are based on
rdépeqdeids prishensavaitelleand/or third party

Income on PT RMBS securities is based on the stated interest rate of the security. Premiums or
purclizseuate presentoatizbd.d&eenofum lost and discount accretion resulting from monthly principal
ey hensesarendiptBalininthorstalizatents of operations. For 10 securities, the income is accrued based
efidbevegieying Madugiffarshide between income accrued and the interest received on the security is
ahdrsetetzetb ascaicetuine abintastomnting value. At each reporting date, the effective yield is adjusted
perkistivebedritierensapestingate of prepayments and the contractual terms of the security. For 11O
secoyitidion effdctilatipiedd adswlticonieto account the index value applicable to the security. Changes in
feppording péMRIdBEedudogrdeacim earnings and reported as unrealized gains or losses on mortgage-
batkacecwitigreritiigs accompanying

Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments

The Company uses derivative and other hedging instruments to manage interest rate risk,
managiitatheassgptishiily, sirriegiesy adshtinue to do so in the future. The principal instruments that
fred3ompitole hESINsidty HateFuwads and Eurodollar futures contracts, short positions in U.S.

Treasury securities, interest rate swaps, ;



options to enter in interest rate swaps (“interest rate swaptions”) and “to-be-announced” (“TBA”)
aeppdtidsr thatesettiemslelbuhtine Gomdeahgr hedging instruments in the future.

The Company accounts for TBA securities as derivative instruments. Gains and losses associated
are véfhoftBA isegaintigsssiansadtidnative instruments in the accompanying statements of operations.

Derivative and other hedging instruments are carried at fair value, and changes in fair value are
Ther€mrgerhyis edenivagd dofieasbigleiitstruments are not designated as hedge accounting relationships,
hotiggberf #epirtdias aswtomne liabilities.

Holding derivatives creates exposure to credit risk related to the potential for failure on the part of
honep thsrpeshiesianshexchiangesetent of default by a counterparty, the Company may have difficulty
receiaripgyritentdlgiesaldaddomaynder the terms of the agreement. The Company’s derivative
aglletrants matigiteitsteporikor Imemdditton, the Company uses only registered central clearing
backsrgesamienpeltiestablishitdrcpowitiertalwith individual counterparties and adjusts posted collateral
as required.

Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value is disclosed
stateithaitih dhinlindy afcthedinaneil notes. RMBS, Eurodollar, Fed Funds and T-Note futures contracts,
Bvensitdbmetearsivapg, sdeveitiesatae accounted for at fair value in the balance sheets. The methods and
ashunfpliohe sesied ttoestinsaterdairesented in Note 12 of the financial statements.

The estimated fair value of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accrued interest receivable,
otheeegietsle digs seaffiligtessaidpurchase agreements, payable for unsettled securities purchased,
habilitesbirderestalpagpplexdnthtetheheir carrying values as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 due
floatheiaHnsttemantature of these

Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of the majority of its RMBS through the use of repurchase
repuBgiigssnenitesmdatsnaBigiurchase agreements are accounted for as collateralized financing
tranisacticals ambigitsariechatingd atctoeu interest, as specified in the respective agreements.

Reverse Repurchase Agreements and Obligations to Return Securities Borrowed under Reverse
Repurchase Agreements

The Company borrows securities to cover short sales of U.S. Treasury securities through reverse
masepUEhashaiensgetionenisdeneurccount for these as securities borrowing transactions and
tecogniee swcalitigstian fadr retium the the balance sheet based on the value of the underlying borrowed
Feeusitiesritissotdeiveperingoldaéeal in connection with our reverse repurchase agreements mitigate
evunteegirtisk. @porsverte repurchase agreements typically have maturities of 30 days or less.

Manager Compensation

The Company is externally managed by Bimini Advisors, LLC (the “Manager” or “Bimini Advisors”),
congpbtgrdadd wisltebliatititysubsidiary of Bimini. The Company’s management agreement with the
Manager pfosidesnfoepaymefde taritieeimbursement of certain operating expenses, which are accrued
amicexppeysede dianingdher peyiocethr Refer to Note 13 for the terms of the management agreement.

8



Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”)is calculated as netincome or loss attributable to common
avefdgekholdbes divisteddyy dheomsightestock outstanding or subscribed during the period. Diluted EPS
stackaddted-cmisg ietheehasyapplicable, for common stock equivalents, if any. However, the common
sadmpqtinglelitstedrE St ifichedeebult is anti-dilutive.

Income Taxes

Orchid has qualified and elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (‘REIT”) under the Internal
as dreyedse @asleCud86, REITs are generally not subject to federal income tax on their REIT taxable
tistibatpriovttied Btetkeyders at least 90% of their REIT taxable income on an annual basis. In addition, a
Pholisioustofiéet Gibee to retain its tax status.

Orchid assesses the likelihood, based on their technical merit, that uncertain tax positions will be
basedstairled fzots) ekamimsttioses and information available at the end of each period. All of Orchid’s tax
higitiposradm catbgerizra@saccrual for any tax, interest or penalties related to Orchid’s tax position
ansesinetix pdbidonedsurdiostetiofhen new information is available, or when an event occurs that requires
a change.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On January 1, 2020, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ABdlc2i16st@iments — Credit Losses
326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial IASt2@18s13 requ{rBgoigedit losses on most financial
at amortized cost and certain other instruments to lssseésamegadursihg an expected credit loss model
et toradithessumedtl). The Company’s adoption of this ASU did not have a material effect on its
financial Rieéesnpete aréady measured at fair value through earnings.

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU R¥6réAce Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of
Reform on Financial RepdrtiA@U 2020-04 Plefeideregliataal expedients and exceptions to GAAP
on debt instruments, leasessWegivaiiedoamiadifaationisacts, related to the expected market transition from
edreadraténtart®OR”), and certain other floating rate benchmark indices, or collectively, IBORs, to
a0emnativgarsfentinamraiderd\&bhtract modifications related to reference rate reform to be an event that does
rerheeguirernentratthe modification date nor a reassessment of a previous accounting determination. The
gplitangaiiAsh) 228ddd over time, through December 31, 2022, as reference rate reform activities
betierelthe Gaomanyadadkis ABU will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In January 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-01 “Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848). ASU 2021-01
848axpatisithalsaffpetofi A8fvatives and give market participants the ability to apply certain aspects of the
hedtyscicvodiftiadien@sdients to derivative contracts affected by the discounting transition. In addition, ASU
gieMemadsn guidance to permit a company to apply certain optional expedients to modifications of
imtetgistrigielisdexesngseddontract price alignment of certain derivatives as a result of reference rate reform
optiatieg e apediaiends account for a derivative contract modified as a continuation of the existing contract
apedorterfivhemedasain critical terms of a hedging relationship change to modifications made as part of the
disidaunictng #B1$ifioa110kis effective immediately and available generally through December 31, 2022, as
efeveirecdetarrefaBTCompany does not believe the adoption of this ASU will have a material impact on its
financial statements.

NOTE 2. MORTGAGE-BACKED
SECURITIES



The following table presents the Company’s RMBS portfolio as of March 31, 2021
and December 31, 2020:

(in thousands)

March 31, 2021 December 31,

Pass-Through RMBS Certificates: 2020
Fixed-rate Mortgages $ 4,297,731% 3,560,746
Fixed-rate CMOs - 137,453
Total Pass-Through Certificates 4,297,731 3,698,199
Structured RMBS Certificates:
Interest-Only Securities 35,521 28,696
Inverse Interest-Only Securities 5,284 -
Total Structured RMBS Certificates 40,805 28,696
Total $ 4,338,536% 3,726,895

NOTE 3. REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The Company pledges certain of its RMBS as collateral under repurchase agreements with financial
geniaslitytices. balssasimaiesvaiidg rates corresponding to the terms of the borrowings, and interest is
perexaihg. pHithet fiie vafodrattoe pfetiged securities declines, lenders will typically require the Company
tioposbaddifivigd  twHatesthblishaggreed upon collateral requirements, referred to as "margin calls."
Similatiys inbeitiesyawedertheapledgssse collateral back to the Company. As of March 31, 2021, the
feomipamenited met all margin call

As of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company’s repurchase agreements had
belo@maining maturities as summarized

($ in thousands)

OVERNIGHT BETWEEN 2 BETWEEN 31 GREATER

(1 DAY OR AND AND THAN
LESS) 30 DAYS 90 DAYS 90 DAYS TOTAL

March 31, 2021
Fair market value of securities pledged, including

accrued interest receivable $ 58,219% 2,288,135$ 1,316,896% 622,666 $ 4,285,916
Repurchase agreement liabilities associated with

these securities $ 53,526 $ 2,233,561% 1,289,617% 604,976 $ 4,181,680
Net weighted average borrowing rate 0.24% 0.18% 0.18% 0.18% 0.18%
December 31, 2020
Fair market value of securities pledged, including

accrued interest receivable $ - $ 2112,969% 1,560,798% 55,776 $ 3,729,543
Repurchase agreement liabilities associated with

these securities $ - $ 2047,897% 1,494,500% 53,189 $ 3,595,586
Net weighted average borrowing rate - 0.23% 0.22% 0.30% 0.23%

In addition, cash pledged to counterparties for repurchase agreements was02oPnaikiorateld&E8 million as of
March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

If, during the term of a repurchase agreement, a lender files for bankruptcy, the Company might
pledyedrenes, difffiolycraddvesingt its an unsecured claim against the lender for the difference between
pies anterest lcare tloctheoGoteganyy and the fair value of the collateral pledged to such lender, including
Helasmhedinterest thiectiapleny as collateral. At March 31, 2021, the Company had an aggregate
batagrirathaiskirttberdifteneadeto the Company, including interest payable and securities posted by the
validerpssturitiesngndacaktheléalged (if any), including accrued interest on such securities) with all 205.9
counterparties of approximately $ 10



million. The Company did not have an amount at risk with any individual counterparty greater than
309202 then& ddezanytee@dity2@20larch

NOTE 4. DERIVATIVE AND OTHER HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

The table below summarizes fair value information about our derivative and other hedging
MaricistBdm @2 1 ass B esababilBit 2 Gz0of

(in thousands)
Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments

Balance Sheet Location March 31, 2021 December 31,

Assets 2020

Interest rate swaps Derivative assets, at fair value $ 25,254 $ 7
Payer swaptions (long positions) Derivative assets, at fair value 58,643 17,433
Interest rate floors Derivative assets, at fair value 2,399 -
TBA securities Derivative assets, at fair value 9,456 3,559
Total derivative assets, at fair value $ 95,752 $ 20,999
Liabilities

Interest rate swaps Derivative liabilities, at fair valué -9 24,711
Payer swaptions (short positions) Derivative liabilities, at fair value 35,057 7,730
TBA securities Derivative liabilities, at fair value - 786
Total derivative liabilities, at fair value $ 35,057 $ 33,227

Margin Balances Posted to (from) Counterparties

Futures contracts Restricted cash $ 585 $ 489
TBA securities Restricted cash 1,781 284
TBA securities Other liabilities (7,407) (2,520)
Interest rate swaption contracts Other liabilities (13,962) (3,563)
Interest rate swap contracts Restricted cash 12,214 19,761
Total margin balances on derivative contracts $ (6,789)% 14,451

Eurodollar, Fed Funds and T-Note futures are cash settled futures contracts on an interest rate, with
chaggaaistanthioSssrapargdiedasih accounts on a daily basis. A minimum balance, or “margin”, is required
tod=lynsasisingthendbeacbelow mrsent information related to the Company’s Eurodollar and T-Note
frdreecpasiiéens at 28tzoch 31, 2021

(8 in thousands)

March 31, 2021

Average Weighted Weighted

Contract Average Average

Notional Entry Effective Open
Expiration Year Amount Rate Rate Equit{)
Eurodollar Futures Contracts (Short Positions)
2021 $ 50,000 1.01% 0.21% $ (301)
Treasury Note Futures Contracts (Short ®osition)
June 2021 5-year T-Note futures

(Jun 2021 - Jun 2026 Hedge Period) $ 69,000 0.88% 1.17% $ 1,036

($ in thousandss)

December 31, 2020
Average Weighted Weighted
Contract Average Average
Notional Entry Effective Open
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Expiration Year Amount Rate Rate Equity)
Eurodollar Futures Contracts (Short Positions)
2021 $ 50,000 1.03% 0.18% $ (424)
Treasury Note Futures Contracts (Short ®osition)
March 2021 5 year T-Note futures

(Mar 2021 - Mar 2026 Hedge Period) $ 69,000 0.72% 0.67% $ (186)

(1) Open equity represents the cumulative gains (losses) recorded on open futures positions from inception.
(2) T-Note futures contracts were valued at a p2isd0a$March 31, 2021 ah@6$16at December 31, 2020. The contract
short positions we@5$1 million and$.1 million at March 31, 2021 and Decembat®s 9@ respectively.

Under our interest rate swap agreements, we typically pay a fixed rate and receive a floating rate
Thebfsathen i BOK Epalyver wmdxrsdir swap agreements has the effect of offsetting the repricing
abasaotenssicandfcashrépuwshassuch liabilities. We are typically required to post collateral on our interest
i wyrpsagredanfentsatibherelbted to the Company’s interest rate swap positions at March 31, 2021
and December 31, 2020.

($ in thousands)

Average Net
Fixed Average Estimated Average
Notional Pay Receive Fair Maturity
Amount Rate Rate Value (Years)
March 31, 2021
Expiration > 3 to < 5 years $ 955,000 0.64% 021% $ 15,286 4.8
Expiration > 5 years 400,000 1.16% 0.18% 9,968 8.1
$ 1,355,000 0.79% 0.20% $ 25,254 5.7
December 31, 2020
Expiration > 3 to < 5 years $ 620,000 1.29% 0.22% $ (23,760) 3.6
Expiration > 5 years 200,000 0.67% 0.23% (944) 6.4
$ 820,000 1.14% 0.23% $ (24,704) 4.3

The table below presents information related to the Company’s interest rate floor
positions at March 31, 2021.

($ in thousands)

Net
Strike Estimated
Notional Swap Curve Fair
Expiration Amount Cost Rate Spread Value
February 3, 2023 $ 70,000 $ 511 0.76%  30Y5Y § 1,435
February 3, 2023 80,000 504 1.10%  10Y2Y 964
$ 150,000 $ 1,015 0.94% 2,399

The table below presents information related to the Company’s interest rate swaption  December

2020ositions at March 31, 2021 and 31,
($ in thousands)
Option Underlying Swap
Weighted Average Weighted
Average Average Adjustabl Average
Fair Months to Notional Fixed Rete Term
Expiration Cost Value Expiration Amount Rate (LIBOR) (Years)

March 31, 2021
Payer Swaptions - long
>1 year < 2 years $ 25390% 58,643 221 $ 1,027,200 2.20% 3 Month 15.0
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Payer Swaptions - short

<1 year $ (10,720% (35,057) 10.1 $ (782,850) 2.20% 3 Month 15.0
December 31, 2020
Payer Swaptions - long

<1 year $ 3,450 $ 5 25 $ 500,000 0.95% 3 Month 4.0

>1 year < 2 years 13,410 17,428 17.4 675,000 1.49% 3 Month 12.8

$ 16860% 17,433 11.0 $ 1,175,000 1.26% 3 Month 9.0

Payer Swaptions - short

<1 year $ (4,660)% (7,730) 5.4 $ (507,700) 1.49% 3 Month 12.8

The following table summarizes our contracts to purchase and sell TBA securities as of March 31,
2021 and December 31, 2020

($ in thousands)

Notional Net
Amount Cost Market Carrying
Long (Shoft) Basig? Valué?) Valué)
March 31, 2021
30-Year TBA securities:
2.5% $ (250,000% (257,188% (256,270% 918
3.0% (1,062,000) (1,114,345) (1,105,807) 8,538
Total $ (1,312,000% (1,371,533% (1,362,077% 9,456
December 31, 2020
30-Year TBA securities:
2.0% $ 465,000% 479,531% 483,090 % 3,559
3.0% (328,000) (342,896) (343,682) (786)
Total $ 137,000% 136,6359% 139,408 $ 2,773

(1) Notional amount represents the par value (or principal balance) of the underlying Agency RMBS.
(2) Cost basis represents the forward price to be paid (received) for the underlying Agency RMBS.
(3) Market value represents the current market value of the TBA securities (or of the underlying Agency RMBS) as of period-
(4) bled.carrying value represents the difference between the market value and the cost basis of the TBA securities as of
rededvartide apskits rgipbititids) at fair value in our balance sheets.

Gain (Loss) From Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments, Net

The table below presents the effect of the Company’s derivative and other hedging instruments
opevatibesstatdheetiticeefmonths ended March 31, 2021 and 2020.

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended March

31,2021 2020
Eurodollar futures contracts (short positions) $ 12 $ (8,217)
T-Note futures contracts (short position) 2,476 (4,339)
Interest rate swaps 27,123 (60,623)
Payer swaptions (short positions) (26,167) -
Payer swaptions (long positions) 40,070 (2,589)
Interest rate floors 1,384 -
TBA securities (short positions) 9,133 (7,090)
TBA securities (long positions) (8,559) -
Total $ 45472 $ (82,858)

Credit Risk-Related Contingent
Features
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The use of derivatives and other hedging instruments creates exposure to credit risk relating to
coupdbtemtiettgprzedhatthe event that the counterparties to these instruments fail to perform their
obiitratitssWedeinihaze this risk by limiting our counterparties for instruments which are not centrally
ebediredgenta regjistéeancial institutions with acceptable credit ratings and monitoring positions with
Incididitisincovatexahieesequired to pledge assets as collateral for our derivatives, whose amounts vary
thenariebsiabtonotional amount and remaining term of the derivative contract. In the event of a
defandybyad caeiterpagiments provided for under the terms of our derivative agreements, and may
havasiffisupedpeaiingollateral for our derivatives. The cash and cash equivalents pledged as
tuitntenenfisravarideliveitlan restricted cash on our balaricis she€smpany's policy not to offset assets
liabilities associated with open derivative contracts. Hoaeder, the Chicago Mercantile Exchange
V@ MiSh niergoninanséeizeas settlement payments, as opposed to adjustments to collateral. As a result,
dod\iztbibitisssassociated with centrally cleared derivatives for which the CME serves as the central
plesendepaaty iitbese derivatives had been settled as of the reporting date.

NOTE 5. PLEDGED ASSETS
Assets Pledged to Counterparties

The table below summarizes our assets pledged as collateral under our repurchase agreements

inclagih gledvativiesagreggeentsidwydyresecurities sold but not yet settled, as of March 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020.

(in thousands)

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Repurchase Derivative Repurchase Derivative

Assets Pledged to Counterparties Agreements Agreements Total Agreements Agreements Total

PT RMBS - fair value $ 4,081,596% -$ 408159 $ 3,692,811% - $ 3,692,811
Structured RMBS - fair value 38,904 - 38,904 27,095 - 27,095
Accrued interest on pledged securities 10,572 - 10,572 9,636 - 9,636
Receivable for securities sold 154,977 - 154,977 - - -
Restricted cash 102,575 14,580 117,155 58,829 20,534 79,363
Total $ 4,388,624% 14,580% 4,403,204 $ 3,788,371% 20,534 $ 3,808,905

Assets Pledged from Counterparties

The table below summarizes our assets pledged to us from counterparties under our repurchase
agrégiesienind ueraevePaebertents as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

(in thousands)

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Repurchase Derivative Repurchase Derivative
Assets Pledged to Orchid Agreements Agreements  Total Agreements Agreements  Total
Cash $ 99 $ 21,369 $ 21,468 $ 120 $ 6,083 $ 6,203
U.S. Treasury securities - fair value 737 - 737 253 - 253
Total $ 836 $ 21,369 $ 22,205% $ 373 $ 6,083 $ 6,456

RMBS and U.S. Treasury securities received as margin under our repurchase agreements are not
bectrmwdied doihedrpkyeerethiestownership of the security. U.S. Treasury securities received from
moustsspagiashaseddigtesahamseamurecognized as obligations to return securities borrowed under
NenR shputchassh ageedreantss dkgin is recognized as cash and cash equivalents with a

corresponding amount recognized as an "



increase in repurchase agreements or other liabilities in
the balance sheets.
NOTE 6. OFFSETTING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company’s derivative agreements and repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase
agreégiesmenistrensastdienbtimyraediifigar arrangements, which provide for the right of offset in the
buekrtupfajefafitoeingbeetetieotransactions. The Company reports its assets and liabilities subject
teadigese arrangements on a gross

The following table presents information regarding those assets and liabilities subject to such
pressraedethentoras iffbeasimpanywfiddrch 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

(in thousands)

Offsetting of Assets

Gross Amount Not
Net Amount Offset in the Balance Sheet

of Assets Financial
Gross AmounGross Amount Presented Instruments Cash
of Recognized Offset in the in the Received as Received as Net
Assets Balance SheetBalance Sheet Collateral Collateral Amount

March 31, 2021
Interest rate swaps $ 25,254 % - $ 25,254 $ -$ -$ 25,254
Interest rate swaptions 58,643 - 58,643 - (13,962) 44,681
Interest rate floors 2,399 - 2,399 - - 2,399
TBA securities 9,456 - 9,456 - (7,407) 2,049

$ 95,752 $ - % 95,752 $ -3 (21,369)% 74,383
December 31, 2020
Interest rate swaps $ 79 - $ 79 -3 -3 7
Interest rate swaptions 17,433 - 17,433 - (3,563) 13,870
TBA securities 3,559 - 3,559 - (2,520) 1,039

$ 20,999 $ - $ 20,999 $ - $ (6,083)% 14,916

(in thousands)

Offsetting of Liabilities

Gross Amount Not
Net Amount Offset in the Balance Sheet
of Liabilities  Financial
Gross AmounGross Amount Presented Instruments
of Recognized Offset in the in the Posted as Cash Posted Net
Liabilities Balance SheetBalance Sheet Collateral as Collateral Amount

March 31, 2021

Repurchase Agreements $ 4,181,680% - $ 4,181,680% (4,079,105% (102,575% -
Interest rate swaptions 35,057 - 35,057 - - 35,057
$  4,216,737% - $ 4216,737$ (4,079,105% (102,575% 35,057
December 31, 2020
Repurchase Agreements $ 3,595,586% - $ 3,595586% (3,536,757% (58,829)% -
Interest rate swaps 24,711 - 24,711 - (19,761) 4,950
Interest rate swaptions 7,730 - 7,730 - - 7,730
TBA securities 786 - 786 - (284) 502
$ 3,628,813% - $ 3,628813% (3,536,757% (78,874)% 13,182

The amounts disclosed for collateral received by or posted to the same counterparty up to and
assapbekabiitingrésemetiainahetbafdhee sheets. The fair value of the actual collateral received by or
posted to the same counterparty 15



typically exceeds the amounts presented. See Note 5 for a discussion of collateral posted or received
apdidstivatios repdroizse ddigiationstruments.

NOTE 7. CAPITAL STOCK
Common Stock Issuances

During the three months ended March 31, 2021 and the year ended December 31, 2020, the
offefingepeinskaraplefedstberfeHewingogriblic

(% in thousands, except per share amounts)

Weighted
Average
Price

Received Net
Type of Offering Period Per Shar® Shares Proceed®
2021
At the Market Offering Proam First Quarter $ 5.10 308,048% 1,572
Follow-on Offerings First Quarter 5.31 17,940,000 95,336
Total 18,248,048% 96,908
2020
At the Market Offering ProGram First Quarter $ 6.13 3,170,727% 19,447
At the Market Offering ProGam Second Quarter - - -
At the Market Offering ProGam Third Quarter 5.06 3,073,326 15,566
At the Market Offering Profam Fourth Quarter 5.32 6,775,187 36,037

13,019,240% 71,050

(1) Weighted average price received per share is after deducting the underwriters’ discount, if applicable, and other offering

(2) NefgirFoceeds are net of the underwriters’ discount, if applicable, and other offering costs.

(3) The Company has entered into eight equity distribution agreements, seven of which have either been terminated
beoasreeralisbeteniwesessdsequent agreement.

Stock Repurchase Program

On July 29, 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repglh88®hapesoof the Company’s
common stock. On February 8, 2018, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the stock repurchase
poztiiemdl@220822ares of the Company's common stock. CoupkaBwilitghares remaining from the @;jg@ts000
share authorization, the increased authorization brought the total ai866r&&8ibares, representing 10% of the
Company’s then outstanding share count. As part of the stock repurchase program, shares may be
trarcdzagizh e bloek madiedses, through privately negotiated transactions, or pursuant to any trading plan that
arphfandenit Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).
Witldremaietirepocohdsrse with Exchange Act Rule 10b-18, which sets certain restrictions on the method,
tipengmnaricet atsckalepueadfases. The timing, manner, price and amount of any repurchases will be determined
b thetidroamebwillipétsubject to economic and market conditions, stock price, applicable legal requirements
aothotirtifacidoss ndi@bligate the Company to acquire any particular amount of common stock and the
gregratinosay didtsashmngadyos discretion without prior notice.

From the inception of the stock repurchase program through March 31, 2021, the Company 5&8&;,&1dsed
shasetotitlarf aggregate cost of approxé@atetili®n, including commissions and fees, for a weighted avetddper
share. No shares were repurchased duringrie@ ®ide months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020. The
repattiag@ptogriaatias ohMerthe31, 2827, 3viakshares.

16



Cash Dividends

The table below presents the cash dividends declared on the
Company’s common stock.
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Per Share

Year Amount Total

2013 $ 1.395% 4,662
2014 2.160 22,643
2015 1.920 38,748
2016 1.680 41,388
2017 1.680 70,717
2018 1.070 55,814
2019 0.960 54,421
2020 0.790 53,570
2021 - YTD 0.260 23,374
Totals $ 11.915% 365,337

(1) OnApril 14, 202the Company declared a dividerti@F%per share to be paiday 26, 2021 The effect of this dividend is
the table above but is not reflected in the Company’s financial statements as of MaroicRtie2D1.

NOTE 8. STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

In October 2012, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted and Bimini, then the Company’s sole
appstoadhdlaeOrechid Island Capital, Inc. 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan”) to recruit
dindatetsirmpehptbgessyvice providers, including employees of the Manager and other affiliates. The
focéintiwsvBranopsiviciesptions, stock appreciation rights, stock award, performance units, other equity-
baseenaherdivgterds with respect to awards of performance units and other equity-based awards) and
iHoehtigerdivardkan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of
Doegtars/sxtdpBtattoé Directors will administer awards made to directors who are not employees of
#féligteapanpeditsentive Plan provides for awards of up to an aggregate of 10% of the issued and
oatstandistpskdresafidiyrdiluted basis) at the time of the awards, subject to a maxifa06Cifshegeseof
Company’s common stock that may be issued under the Incentive Plan. the

Performance Units

The Company has issued, and may in the future issue additional, performance units under the
exendgbrdioffiPtan fmdertaployees of its Manager. “Performance Units” vest after the end of a defined
basledneansatiptaididn of the performance conditions set forth in the performance\Mhéragezeatréach
Performance Unit will be settled by the issuance of one share of the Company’s common stock, at
Rartbrimaedbénit will be cancelled. The Performance Units contain dividend equivalent rights, which
tmtitiecive Pisttibipéons declared by the Company on common stock, but do not include the right to vote
thareseflgorgmon stock. Performance Units are subject to forfeiture should the participant no longer
effiveray amgieedivé the Company or the Manager. Compensation expense for the Performance
theitemaiognigstingvperiod once it becomes probable that the performance conditions will be
achieved.

The following table presents information related to Performance Units outstanding during the
Maitbine@1m2d2H sagvad2d20.

(% in thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended
March 31,
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2021 2020

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Unvested, beginning of period 4554 $ 7.45 19,021 $ 7.78
Granted 137,897 5.88 - -
Vested and issued (2,277) 7.45 (4,153) 8.20
Unvested, end of period 140,174 $ 5.91 14,868 $ 7.66
Compensation expense during period $ 3 $ 14
Unrecognized compensation expense, end of period $ 812 $ 27
Intrinsic value, end of period $ 842 $ 44
Weighted-average remaining vesting term (in years) 21 0.7

The number of shares of common stock issuable upon the vesting of the remaining outstanding
red fegfbimidnecthichhiteiartar of 2020 as a result of the book value impairment event that occurred
bargudetto thecEotiveabigimpensation Plans (the "Plans"). The book value impairment event occurred
nbein b€ perpstmar's declined by more than 15% during the quarter ended March 31, 2020 and the
Penspang'd édivieiedne January 1, 2020 to June 30, 2020 was more than 10%. The Plans provide that
ifrpaihnzebdekealwecurs, then the number of outstanding Performance Units that are outstanding as of
thoigebday pésadtshall be reduced by 15%.

Stock Awards

The Company has issued, and may in the future issue additional, immediately vested common
Incamtivie iHderttheertain executive officers and employees of its Manager. The following table presents
toféwhyatiestedla@dmon stock issued during the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020. All of
tifectutiynosssdackhiaseed during the three months ended March 31, 2021, and the related
goanpexth sationespeehse semtiee performed during the previous fiscal year.

(% in thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended March

30021 2020
Fully vested shares granted 137,897 -
Weighted average grant date price per share $ 5.88 -
Compensation expense related to fully vested shares of common stock awards $ 811 $ -

(1) The awards issued during the three months ended March 31, 2021 were granted with respect to service performed in
2600,098podxiomapelgsation expense related to the 2021 awards was accrued and recognized in 2020.

Deferred Stock Units

Non-employee directors began to receive a portion of their compensation in the form of deferred
(“DStdsK puitsaaatds the Incentive Plan beginning with the awards for the second quarter of 2018.
HalchtD 8ideberesenshare of the Company’s common stock. The DSUs are immediately vested and
dedesbtketiairathagtection of the individual participant. The DSUs contain dividend equivalent rights,
pdnitibi eamtitie thexeive distributions declared by the Company on common stock. These dividend
gycasilentaidtitonst B&thedat the participant’s election. The DSUs do not include the right to vote the
oooenigimgtehkires of

The following table presents information related to the DSUs outstanding during the three months
20Zdnaed R02@h 31,
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(% in thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2021 2020

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Grant Date Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Outstanding, beginning of period 90,946 $ 5.44 43570 $ 6.56
Granted and vested 10,422 5.31 9,008 5.69
Issued - - - -
Outstanding, end of period 101,368 $ 5.43 52,578 $ 6.41
Compensation expense during period $ 45 $ 45
Intrinsic value, end of period $ 609 $ 155

NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the Company may become involved in various claims and legal actions arising
busindbs. wdinageeritisie @bt aware of any reported or unreported contingencies at March 31, 2021.

NOTE 10. INCOME TAXES

The Company will generally not be subject to federal income tax on its REIT taxable income to the
taxaitenidbaistbittestdskRBlders and satisfies the ongoing REIT requirements, including meeting certain
esgairshipprestand REEK must generally distribute at least 90% of its REIT taxable income to its
atockihe!distimiteth nhtitin thgangsdily year, in order to avoid the imposition of an excise tax. The remaining
bplenaee eray brtiistooigdg taxable year, provided the REIT elects to treat such amount as a prior year
disisibretiprireandrteeets certain

NOTE 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

The Company had dividend eligible Performance Units and Deferred Stock Units that were
endedtstanchn® 1J ol thed trre20NPhthsasic and diluted per share computations include these unvested
Batirivniteeif théte damdnBefesradailable to common stock, as they have dividend participation rights. The
Defested Reolckrdaitee hdngsharsbntractual obligation to share in losses. Because there is no such
obligading, DefatraesSidcenitgnans@ot included in the basic and diluted EPS computations when no
meamteoisghvahiahlardaconsidered sparkicipating  securities.

The table below reconciles the numerator and denominator of EPS for the three months
ended March 31, 2021 and 2020.

(in thousands, except per share information)

Three Months Ended March

31,2021 2020

Basic and diluted EPS per common share:
Numerator for basic and diluted EPS per share of common stock:

Net loss - Basic and diluted $ (29,369)% (91,199)
Weighted average shares of common stock:

Shares of common stock outstanding at the balance sheet date 94,411 66,237

Effect of weighting (9,066) (1,647)
Weighted average shares-basic and diluted 85,345 64,590

Net loss per common share:
19



Basic and diluted $ (0.34)$ (1.41)
Anti-dilutive incentive shares not included in calculation. 242 67

NOTE 12. FAIR VALUE

The framework for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities defines fair value as the price
assthair paidldderspetired Ifasil atan exit price). A fair value measure should reflect the assumptions
phridingeitket geaataipaiatsilitypulttligiingn the assumptions about the risk inherent in a particular valuation
tactmecsmle tbewdteof odinaarssdtiatidn the risk of non-performance. Required disclosures include stratification
rabhslaedeatsiigietaneuntssed on inputs the Company uses to derive fair value measurements. These
stratifications are:

e Level 1 valuations, where the valuation is based on quoted market prices for identical assets or

(whilties clrrre e icheelissaatkaiver-the-counter markets with  sufficient volume),

e |evel 2 valuations, where the valuation is based on quoted market prices for similar instruments
peces for agEnacapstetsmitaotastiruments in markets that are not active and model-based
vajnitiamt tecsoiqpsientoravbiobsatvable in the market, and

e |Level 3 valuations, where the valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use
sigseticaple apsthBptiansetnabut observable based on Company-specific data. These unobservable
assupiidsowaflestithates for assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the
assatiqudiatilivicallglumidtude option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar
terhofnaskebupoay albassetiude ladilities that are not directly comparable to the subject asset or
liability.

The Company's RMBS and TBA securities are Level 2 valuations, and such valuations currently are
baseetermittkpdhdém Gegingources and/or third party broker quotes, when available. Because the
Pricepasiinmaiss make\wntathejudgments and assumptions about the appropriate price to use to calculate
theeifieie pahdent Torcidgreparyesande various valuation techniques to determine the price of the
(Bermpembsepanyrities mbbessctathniguiest for like or identical assets (including security coupon, maturity,
yisicadamicipre peychaituepeksidktermine market credit spreads (option adjusted spread, zero volatility
spreedbryiprat o theshShnldgasslivh as a TBA), and model driven approaches (the discounted cash flow
SABRohaddksisk whitiolegyangon observable market rates such as the term structure of interest rates and
palatidiynethbe appsdpsiatesspremdmarket convention. The pricing source determines the spread of
eeenidbrPseakdisdde atbtiystmilar to those being priced. The spread is then adjusted based on
betiseeaghs oeatkist chssachtiostiehd the asset being priced. Those characteristics include: type of asset,
thebitpentedoiitalichthiitpsebthdhexpected future cash flows of the asset, whether the coupon of the asset
dadisedorr ddjustasdaritihef applicable, the coupon, the maturity, the issuer, size of the underlying loans,
vege drigihatedhdoandendhg lestis state in which the underlying loans reside, credit score of the
ifragtgindateoritvectsir gatliothsfrtersddasity is determined by using the adjusted spread.

The Company’s futures contracts are Level 1 valuations, as they are exchange-traded instruments
readindapuagiteisle MBCkatgRieeatratts are settled daily. The Company’s interest rate swaps and interest rate
valapions Arelfeirelalie of interest rate swaps is determined using a discounted cash flow approach
aaihgitwwat rateskethndbreste rbservable inputs. The fair value of interest rate swaptions is determined
using an option pricing model.

RMBS (based on the fair value option), derivatives and TBA securities were recorded at fair value on
threa racuttisg ehdsis Marioly #1e 2021 and 2020. When determining fair value measurements, the
govapayeaensidgreshe whHREIPAWGUMARinsact and considers assumptions that market participants
Vithdd pessibieenthedugn paeaskesiks to active and observable markets to price identical assets. When
mgihviicaladeststs thre Cuohpradedoivks to market observable data for similar assets.
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The following table presents financial assets (liabilities) measured at fair value on a recurring
Dedemstseasd Of BMBRSHVAtve2Bhaadts are reported as a net position by contract type, and not based on master
netting arrangements.

(in thousands)

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
March 31, 2021
Mortgage-backed securities $ -$ 4,338,536% -
Interest rate swaps - 25,254 -
Interest rate swaptions - 23,586 -
Interest rate floors - 2,399 -
TBA securities - 9,456 -
December 31, 2020
Mortgage-backed securities $ -$ 3,726,895% -
Interest rate swaps - (24,704) -
Interest rate swaptions - 9,703 -
TBA securities - 2,773 -

During the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no transfers of financial assets or
2 ofidbilities between levels 1,

NOTE 13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Management Agreement

The Company is externally managed and advised by Bimini Advisors, LLC (the “Manager”)
maragemashtaghederans. dfie management agreement has been renewed through February 20, 2022
antbpiatiiglesdofear extension options thereafter and is subject to certain termination rights. Under
thariagementyreement, the Manager is responsible for administering the business activities and day-
thed@popemajionTeé Manager receives a monthly management fee in the amount of:

° One-twelfth of 1.5% of the first $250 million of the Company’s month-end equity, as defined
wytee mamagement

° One-twelfth of 1.25% of the Company’s month-end equity that is greater than $250 million
eqddess $590 afillion, and

° One-twelfth of 1.00% of the Company’s month-end equity that is greater than $500 million.

The Company is obligated to reimburse the Manager for any direct expenses incurred on its behalf
Maragdiothe\Cibepany’s pro rata portion of certain overhead costs set forth in the management
agiepaenterrtinatdctiieemanagement agreement without cause, it will pay the Manager a termination
trecdoue dvésgRe annual management fee, as defined in the management agreement, before or on

tfaHeshgl@enfdhe term
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Total expenses recorded for the management fee and costs incurred wer& Sppithiximarted\§$
for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. At March 31, 2021 and million
bBecembens lo 20KitE&ewsd approxifatehilfon an@.$ million, respectively.

Other Relationships with Bimini

Robert Cauley, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of our Board of Directors, also serves as
Chaifataef dhxtaeuBuardiitBirastbrs of Bimini and owns shares of common stock of Bimini. George H.
Basr|\Clief biviesthieat Géficer, Secretary and a member of our Board of Directors, also serves as the
faviedthieancsideifigat Tleiggurer of Bimini and owns shares of common stock of Bimini. In addition, as of
Mene, 895 Bahddissinbr 2.8%, of the Company’s common stock.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with
statéradiitarial notes to those statements included in Item 1 of this Form 10-Q. The discussion may contain
stertaindntyrdtlionkiive risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements are those that are not historical in
nednyefadtoesiesuthafs those set forth under “Risk Factors” in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, our
arffeahiesaisN@éym those anticipated in such forward-looking statements.

Overview

We are a specialty finance company that invests in residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”) which are
guaissiteddny a federally chartered corporation or agency (“Agency RMBS”). Our investment strategy focuses on,
aonsists pdrtfwiocategories of Agency RMBS: (i) traditional pass-through Agency RMBS, such as mortgage pass-
thsaedrbgdrtificade®ae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae (the “GSEs”) and collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs”)
{spaeRMB 8¢ 43BH#) structured Agency RMBS, such as interest-only securities (“10s”), inverse interest-only
peocipEo(iNGEQwitibs (“POs”), among other types of structured Agency RMBS. We were formed by Bimini in
Aoguse 2688 pperations on November 24, 2010 and completed our initial public offering (“IlPO”) on February 20,
élibrnallyenanieaged by Bimini Advisors, an investment adviser registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”).

Our business objective is to provide attractive risk-adjusted total returns over the long term through a
appeesidtioatandoheapiament of regular monthly distributions. We intend to achieve this objective by investing in
aholcsitiatpgigitial between the two categories of Agency RMBS described above. We seek to generate income
fremy(ih dnecwetiévieregéd PT RMBS portfolio and the leveraged portion of our structured Agency RMBS portfolio,
rivdiie the éekasite from the unleveraged portion of our structured Agency RMBS  portfolio. We intend to fund our
eariiMBSandtructured Agency RMBS through short-term borrowings structured as repurchase agreements. PT
RYyEpSyaRMG8IGipIeslly exhibit materially different sensitivities to movements in interest rates. Declines in the
wadyebef affsepbitfaipreciation in the other. The percentage of capital that we allocate to our two Agency RMBS
aasphoatedbiiesastliely managed in an effort to maintain the level of income generated by the combined portfolios,
theostrbitreairihaid the stability of the value of the combined portfolios. We believe that this strategy will enhance
earriggilityook value stability and asset selection opportunities in various interest rate environments.

We operate so as to qualify to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) under the Internal Revenue
amédraidel ¢fEO800de”). We generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax to the extent that we currently
BiEtrbistealsit dicnme (as defined in the Code) to our stockholders and maintain our REIT qualification.

The Company’s common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “ORC”.
Capital Raising Activities

On January 23, 2020, we entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “January 2020 Equity Distribution
threbgiglemagehwitsursuant to which we could offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of
$260r0sh{6roé&iukrés transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated
traosaaltadg.70\¥e7issuads under the January 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of
fiéD B ooitléats ahapproximately $19.4 million, net of commissions and fees, prior to its termination in August 2020.

On August 4, 2020, we entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “August 2020 Equity Distribution
salegigentempirsvitmfaorwhich we may offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of
B4 60v0siOkahshraneacifans that are deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated

transactions. Through March 31,
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2021, we issued a total of 10,156,561 shares under the August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate
gpesexinmated$64.1 million, and net proceeds of approximately $53.2 million, net of commissions and fees.

On January 20, 2021, we entered into an underwriting agreement (the “January 2021 Underwriting
Sechgtiesnéeit”) with MBrddntyaerlating to the offer and sale of 7,600,000 shares of our common stock. J.P.
Menganawwhesethibe stock from the Company pursuant to the January 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $5.20
ey gharedn #&ddiNrgan a 30-day option to purchase up to an additional 1,140,000 shares of our common stock
ooribitisasnevteécmg Mdvorgan exercised in full on January 21, 2021. The closing of the offering of 8,740,000 shares
sfoakr essumed on January 25, 2021, with net proceeds to us of approximately $45.2 million, net of offering
expenses.

On March 2, 2021 we entered into an underwriting agreement (the “March 2021 Underwriting Agreement”) with
reladiiy tdargasifer and sale of 8,000,000 shares of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of our
trerOwningkplisuant to the March 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $5.45 per share. In addition, we granted J.P.
birgancepsletiage up to an additional 1,200,000 shares of our common stock on the same terms and conditions,
wikéebisked. iVfuigan March 3, 2021. The closing of the offering of 9,200,000 shares of our common stock occurred
withviaetipfac2@ds, to us of approximately $50.1 million, net of offering expenses.

Stock Repurchase Agreement

On July 29, 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 2,000,000 shares of
Thedtihrynmanrséecrice and amount of any repurchases is determined by the Company in its discretion and is
anbjechtketecomditivas, stock price, applicable legal requirements and other factors. The authorization does not
tbhggtartharyopapicylar amount of common stock and the program may be suspended or discontinued at the
wineeanyiedigstiedodn February 8, 2018, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the stock repurchase
pugtitienafer, 5R2@2D shares of the Company’s common stock. Coupled with the 783,757 shares remaining from
theaariginabZiitibA0the increased authorization brought the total authorization to 5,306,579 shares, representing
Odvpditlyss then outstanding share count. This stock repurchase program has no termination date.

From the inception of the stock repurchase program through March 31, 2021, the Company repurchased a total
shamdS#&&ggregate cost of approximately $40.4 million, including commissions and fees, for a weighted
shiarag® eiGonap &y idid pet repurchase any shares of its common stock during the three months ended March 31,
PERAAiniRg authorization under the repurchase program as of March 31, 2021 was 837,311 shares.

Factors that Affect our Results of Operations and Financial Condition

A variety of industry and economic factors may impact our results of operations and financial condition. These
factors include:
interest rate trends;
the difference between Agency RMBS yields and our funding and hedging costs;
competition for, and supply of, investments in Agency RMBS;
actions taken by the U.S. government, including the presidential administration, the Fed, the Federal
Boesing(friedfeird\”), the Federal Open Market Committee (the “FOMC”) and the U.S. Treasury;
prepayment rates on mortgages underlying our Agency RMBS and credit trends insofar as they affect
ptReAackdtratassiepthents.

In addition, a variety of factors relating to our business may also impact our results of operations and financial
factoeointitiie: These
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our degree of leverage;

our access to funding and borrowing capacity;

our borrowing costs;

our hedging activities;

the market value of our investments; and

the requirements to qualify as a REIT and the requirements to qualify for a registration exemption under the

DyegiargNAct.

Results of Operations

Described below are the Company’s results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2021,
Compasp@pesels tothperations for the three months ended March 31, 2020.

Net (Loss) Income Summary

Net loss for the three months ended March 31, 2021 was $29.4 million, or $0.34 per share. Net loss for
Mardhe3 1th2@@ tnavdb s Endechillion, or $1.41 per share. The components of net loss for the three months
ardrpwitargheharged anth@d28omponents are presented in the table below:

(in thousands)

2021 2020 Change
Interest income $ 26,856 $ 35,6719% (8,815)
Interest expense (1,941) (16,523) 14,582
Net interest income 24,915 19,148 5,767
Losses on RMBS and derivative contracts (50,791)  (108,206) 57,415
Net portfolio deficiency (25,876) (89,058) 63,182
Expenses (3,493) (2,141) (1,352)
Net loss $  (29,369% (91,1998 61,830

GAAP and Non-GAAP Reconciliations

In addition to the results presented in accordance with GAAP, our results of operations discussed below
nonrsAB fiedaicial information, including “Net Earnings Excluding Realized and Unrealized Gains and
Irdesest Eramahand “Economic Net Interest Income.”

Net Earnings Excluding Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses

We have elected to account for our Agency RMBS under the fair value option. Securities held under the
optifair seduecorded at estimated fair value, with changes in the fair value recorded as unrealized gains or
tbessimtbnoents of operations.

In addition, we have not designated our derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes as
accbed{ag farrposes, but rather hold them for economic hedging purposes. Changes in fair value of these
preisentedtinaresseparate line item in the Company’s statements of operations and are not included in interest
enpbnkar. finAscial reporting purposes, interest expense and cost of funds are not impacted by the fluctuation
theviakley efittstruments.

Presenting net earnings excluding realized and unrealized gains and losses allows management to: (i)
inteisrdtedbmaaind other expenses of the Company over time, free of all fair value adjustments and (ii)
afestiyehess of our funding and hedging strategies on our capital allocation decisions and our asset

allocation performance. s



Our funding and hedging strategies, capital allocation and asset selection are integral to our risk
tharefgeeneniticstratetng anahagement of our portfolio.  We believe that the presentation of our net earnings
erdudirephizelizgdins is useful to investors because it provides a means of comparing our results of
operengsAbdhiwseafot elected the same accounting treatment.  Our presentation of net earnings excluding
reukzadiderhdains and losses may not be comparable to similarly-titted measures of other companies, who
nagulsiodisiofed result, net earnings excluding realized and unrealized gains and losses should not be
sabstiatedaroar GAAP net income (loss) as a measure of our financial performance or any measure of our
iRty uhtertable below presents a reconciliation of our net income (loss) determined in accordance with
ExAiRgnexohiding realized and unrealized gains and losses.

Net Earnings Excluding Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses
(in thousands, except per share data)

Per Share
Net Earnings Net Earnings
Excluding Excluding
Realized and Realized and Realized and Realized and
Net Unrealized Unrealized Net Unrealized Unrealized
Income Gains and Gains and Income Gains and Gains and
(GAAP) Losseé) Losses (GAAP) Losses Losses
Three Months Ended
March 31, 2021 $ (29,3698 (50,791% 21,422 $ (0.34)$ (0.60)$ 0.26
December 31, 2020 16,479 (4,605) 21,084 0.23 (0.07) 0.30
September 30, 2020 28,076 5,745 22,331 0.42 0.09 0.33
June 30, 2020 48,772 28,749 20,023 0.74 0.43 0.31
March 31, 2020 (91,199) (108,206) 17,007 (1.41) (1.68) 0.27

(1) Includes realized and unrealized gains (losses) on RMBS and derivative financial instruments, including net interest income or
nperstaate swaps

Economic Interest Expense and Economic Net Interest Income

We use derivative and other hedging instruments, specifically Eurodollar, Fed Funds and Treasury Note
futuf@sMotetacts, short positions in U.S. Treasury securities, interest rate swaps and swaptions, to hedge a
poetieatshthaisk on repurchase agreements in a rising rate environment.

We have not elected to designate our derivative holdings for hedge accounting treatment. Changes in
instfaimenitseané thessented in a separate line item in our statements of operations and not included in interest
enpbnfw. fl@ncial reporting purposes, interest expense and cost of funds are not impacted by the
tledymtianimstralvemisthe

For the purpose of computing economic net interest income and ratios relating to cost of funds
intenesasumeen<eArRS8 been adjusted to reflect the realized and unrealized gains or losses on certain
theriCatimpdanytusasnspecifically Eurodollar, Fed Funds and U.S. Treasury futures, and interest rate swaps
trat pedpiiottseach period presented. We believe that adjusting our interest expense for the periods
prdesatsdontitesgdiegvative instruments would not accurately reflect our economic interest expense for
teasopéithdd.tMaee derivative instruments may cover periods that extend into the future, not just the current
pealzbdAaryunrealized gains or losses on the instruments reflect the change in market value of the
tisingaenh congsstying interest rates applicable to the term covered by the instrument, not just the current
period.ffeseaied, we have combined the effects of the derivative financial instruments in place for the
teemitiad iptetedtveiXipense incurred on borrowings to reflect total economic interest expense for the
hppliesbéxpenisel. including the effect of derivative instruments for the period, is referred to as economic
Nedriasergbénseme, when calculated to include the effect of derivative instruments for the period, is referred

to as economic
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net interest income. This presentation includes gains or losses on all contracts in effect during the reporting
periodrreovgrdmigpd as well as periods in the future.

The Company may invest in TBAs, which are forward contracts for the purchase or sale of Agency
pre@RNEEBiaesl price, face amount, issuer, coupon and stated maturity on an agreed-upon future date. The
RddBifidaberdslivered into the contract are not known until shortly before the settlement date. We may
shtitsaeptjdotmove the settlement of these securities out to a later date by entering into a dollar roll
tgesagtisMBB@urchased or sold for a forward settlement date are typically priced at a discount to
setiivegenttbeauritiest month. Consequently, forward purchases of Agency RMBS and dollar roll transactions
fepresénffebalance sheet financing. These TBAs are accounted for as derivatives and marked to market
tedeietiteGadosner losses on TBAs are included with gains or losses on other derivative contracts and are
miémeshidedrime for purposes of the discussions below.

We believe that economic interest expense and economic net interest income provide meaningful
conisiftematiadddion to the respective amounts prepared in accordance with GAAP. The non-GAAP
meansgrpérdipo evaluate its financial position and performance without the effects of certain transactions
adpl&maRts that are not necessarily indicative of our current investment portfolio or operations. The
lorseasineddgaivative instruments presented in our statements of operations are not necessarily
relerest médd\expetisetiftat we will ultimately realize. This is because as interest rates move up or down in the
fdine othlesses we ultimately realize, and which will affect our total interest rate expense in future periods,
theydiféalifredngains or losses recognized as of the reporting date.

Our presentation of the economic value of our hedging strategy has important limitations. First, other
participhets may calculate economic interest expense and economic net interest income differently than the
ealgulate them. Second, while we believe that the calculation of the economic value of our hedging strategy
dbegeleaips to present our financial position and performance, it may be of limited usefulness as an
dhelptfoat tdlok economic value of our investment strategy should not be viewed in isolation and is not a
substistiexfaense and net interest income computed in accordance with GAAP.

The tables below present a reconciliation of the adjustments to interest expense shown for each period
deriadditredristouments, and the income statement line item, gains (losses) on derivative instruments,
esridanddnwith GAAP for each quarter of 2021 to date and 2020.

Gains (Losses) on Derivative Instruments
(in thousands)

Funding Hedges

Recognized in Attributed to Attributed to
Income U.S. Treasury and TBA Current Future
Statement Securities Gain (Loss) Period Periods
(GAAP) (Short Positions) (Long Positions) (Non-GAAP) (Non-GAAP)
Three Months Ended
March 31, 2021 $ 45,472 % 9,133 § (8,559% (4,044% 48,942
December 31, 2020 8,538 (436) 5,480 (5,790% 9,284
September 30, 2020 4,079 131 3,336 (6,900% 7,512
June 30, 2020 (8,851) 582 1,133 (5,751% (4,815)
March 31, 2020 (82,858) (7,090) - (4,900% (70,868)

Economic Interest Expense and Economic Net Interest Income
(in thousands)

Interest Expense on Borrowings
Gains
(Losses) on
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Derivative

Instruments Net Interest Income
GAAP Attributed Economic GAAP Economic
Interest Interest to Current Interest Net Interest Net Interest
Income Expense Period Expens® Income Incom@
Three Months Ended
March 31, 2021 $ 26,856 $ 1,941 $ (4,044)$ 5,985 $ 24,915 $ 20,871
December 31, 2020 25,893 2,011 (5,790) 7,801 23,882 18,092
September 30, 2020 27,223 2,043 (6,900) 8,943 25,180 18,280
June 30, 2020 27,258 4,479 (5,751) 10,230 22,779 17,028
March 31, 2020 35,671 16,523 (4,900) 21,423 19,148 14,248

(1) Reflects the effect of derivative instrument hedges for only the period presented.

(2) Calculated by adding the effect of derivative instrument hedges attributed to the period presented to GAAP interest expense.
(3) Calculated by adding the effect of derivative instrument hedges attributed to the period presented to GAAP net interest income.
Net Interest Income

During the three months ended March 31, 2021, we generated $24.9 million of net interest income,
integestsistiomeoffiott. RMB®assets offset by $1.9 million of interest expense on borrowings. For the
poaparebierpetatiefdod Midich 3, net interest income, consisting of $35.7 million of interest income from
RMBE abseteredtsetiyn$46dn borrowings. The $8.8 million decrease in interest income was due to a 170
tasigelbn (2vesayslRNIBSE hartially offset by the $762.9 million increase in average RMBS. The $14.6 million
alpeessovins iogeasta 191 bps decrease in the average cost of funds, partially offset by a $759.5 million
boressagn anrdgrl maikdaadingge assets and borrowings during the first quarter of 2021 compared to the first
dupasiesdth@0gkbaaene of our capital raising activity during the second half of 2020 and the first quarter of
2021.

On an economic basis, our interest expense on borrowings for the three months ended March 31, 2021
andBrRh 2028ilners fsspeaviliery, resultingin $20.9 million and $14.2 million of economic net interest income,
espertiielyterdst lowmense during the three months ended March 31, 2021 was due to the 191 bps decrease
imoteed average paotdldf bffsds by the $759.5 million increase in average outstanding borrowings and the
heggtive apavidenageengfiesr period.

The tables below provide information on our portfolio average balances, interest income, yield on assets,
expavieag@sbosfdwings, neténéstest income and net interest spread for each quarter in 2021 to date and 2020
evohothiaKa88P and

($ in thousands)

Average Yield on Interest Expense Average Cost of Funds
RMBS Interest Average Average GAAP Economic GAAP  Economic
Held Income RMBS Borrowings Basis Basi®) Basis Basi&)
Three Months Ended
March 31, 2021 $ 4,032,716% 26,856 2.66%% 3,888,633% 1,941 $ 5,985 0.20% 0.62%
December 31, 2020 3,633,631 25,893 2.85% 3,438,444 2,011 7,801 0.23% 0.91%
September 30, 2020 3,422,564 27,223 3.18% 3,228,021 2,043 8,943 0.25% 1.11%
June 30, 2020 3,126,779 27,258 3.49% 2,992,494 4,479 10,230 0.60% 1.37%
March 31, 2020 3,269,859 35,671 4.36% 3,129,178 16,523 21,423 2.11% 2.74%
($ in thousands)
Net Interest Income Net Interest Spread
GAAP Economic GAAP  Economic
Basis Basi®) Basis Basi$!

Three Months Ended
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March 31, 2021 $ 24915 $ 20,871 2.46% 2.04%

December 31, 2020 23,882 18,093 2.62% 1.94%
September 30, 2020 25,180 18,280 2.93% 2.07%
June 30, 2020 22,779 17,028 2.89% 2.12%
March 31, 2020 19,148 14,248 2.25% 1.62%

(1) Portfolio yields and costs of borrowings presented in the tables above and the tables on pages 29 and 30 are calculated based
andftage balances of the underlying investment portfolio/borrowings balances and are annualized for the periods presented.
Balemrages for quarterly periods are calculated using two data points, the beginning and ending balances.

(2) Economic interest expense and economic net interegirememted in the table above and the tables on page 30 include the effect
of our derivative instrument hedges for only the periods presented.

(3) Represents interest cost of our borrowings and the effect of derivative instrument hedges attributed to the period divided by

averr@sBs.

(4) Economic net interest spread is calculated by subtracting average economic cost of funds from realized yield on average
RMBS.

Interest Income and Average Asset Yield

Our interest income for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 was $26.9 million and $35.7
avenfj®RMBSpédidielys dfV§Hha32.7 million and $3,269.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021
FrRI2OZ OurespeiikelwaslR®6% and 4.36% for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020,
erfmtlitatyhFon , thedhrae compbeed to the three months ended March 31, 2020, there was a $8.8 million
ttearé@debpis idecashsimaontieedyield on average RMBS, partially offset by a $762.9 million increase in average
RMBS.

The table below presents the average portfolio size, income and yields of our respective sub-portfolios,
andoeTRNIRS dbsteachipearVMBS2021 to date and 2020.

($ in thousands)

Average RMBS Held Interest Income Realized Yield on Average RMBS
PT Structured PT Structured PT Structured

Three Months Ended RMBS RMBS Total RMBS RMBS Total RMBS RMBS Total

March 31, 2021 $ 3,997,965% 34,751% 4,032,716% 26,869 $ (13)$ 26,856 2.69% (0.15)% 2.66%
December 31, 2020 3,603,885 29,746 3,633,631 25,933 (40) 25,893 2.88% (0.53)% 2.85%
September 30, 2020 3,389,037 33,527 3,422,564 27,021 202 27,223 3.19% 2.41% 3.18%
June 30, 2020 3,088,603 38,176 3,126,779 27,004 254 27,258 3.50% 267% 3.49%
March 31, 2020 3,207,467 62,392 3,269,859 35,286 385 35,671 4.40% 2.47% 4.36%

Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had average outstanding borrowings of $3,888.6 million and $3,129.2 million and total interest
milliexpemsénefttfid® midisths amdi®d6March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Our average cost of funds was
fhahthsaedd@d! Marel the th@E21 and 2020, respectively. Contributing to the decrease in interest expense was
aviddwsodewtasalsn thatially offset by a $759.5 million increase in average outstanding borrowings during
Werdhrae, nrpihsiseosie@ared to the three months ended March 31, 2020.

Our economic interest expense was $6.0 million and $21.4 million for the three months ended March 31,
The282agnd 2020 pEeshagtedly.in the average economic cost of funds to 0.62% for the three months ended
fdathe Bfre02drtbmneddetf/oMarch 31, 2020.

Since all of our repurchase agreements are short-term, changes in market rates directly affect our interest
of fgesatcuRiledaverag8AAst basis was 7 bps above the average one-month LIBOR and 3 bps below the
therpgateaixendethMaB®R3Qr2021.  Our average economic cost of funds was 49 bps above the average one-
asuvb théBIBragd SR-bmsnth LIBOR for the quarter ended March 31, 2021. The average term to maturity of
the outstanding repurchase 29



agreements was 43 days at March 31, 2021 and 31 days at December 31, 2020.

The tables below present the average balance of borrowings outstanding, interest expense and average

oneco”irahfunts sirmdoatBragBOR rates for each quarter in 2021 to date and 2020 on both a GAAP and
economic basis.

($ in thousands)

Average Interest Expense Average Cost of Funds

Balance of GAAP Economic GAAP Economic
Three Months Ended Borrowings Basis Basis Basis Basis
March 31, 2021 $ 3,888,633% 1,941 % 5,985 0.20% 0.62%
December 31, 2020 3,438,444 2,011 7,801 0.23% 0.91%
September 30, 2020 3,228,021 2,043 8,943 0.25% 1.11%
June 30, 2020 2,992,494 4,479 10,230 0.60% 1.37%
March 31, 2020 3,129,178 16,523 21,423 2.11% 2.74%

Average GAAP Cost of Funds Average Economic Cost of Funds

Relative to Average Relative to Average
Average LIBOR One-Month Six-Month One-Month Six-Month
One-Month Six-Month LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
Three Months Ended
March 31, 2021 0.13% 0.23% 0.07% (0.03)% 0.49% 0.39%
December 31, 2020 0.15% 0.27% 0.08% (0.04)% 0.76% 0.64%
September 30, 2020 0.17% 0.35% 0.08% (0.10)% 0.94% 0.76%
June 30, 2020 0.55% 0.70% 0.05% (0.10)% 0.82% 0.67%
March 31, 2020 1.34% 1.43% 0.77% 0.68% 1.40% 1.31%

Gains or Losses
The table below presents our gains or losses for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020.

(in thousands)

2021 2020 Change
Realized losses on sales of RMBS $ (7,397)% (28,380% 20,983
Unrealized (losses) gains on RMBS (88,866) 3,032 (91,898)
Total losses on  RMBS (96,263) (25,348) (70,915)
Gains (losses) on interest rate futures 2,488 (12,556) 15,044
Gains (losses) on interest rate swaps 27,123 (60,623) 87,746
Losses on payer swaptions (short positions) (26,167) - (26,167)
Gains (losses) on payer swaptions (long positions) 40,070 (2,589) 42,659
Gains on interest rate floors 1,384 - 1,384
Losses on TBA securities (long positions) (8,559) - (8,559)
Gains (losses) on TBA securities (short positions) 9,133 (7,090) 16,223
Total $ (50,791%  (108,206% 57,415

We invest in RMBS with the intent to earn net income from the realized yield on those assets over their
costelated fistdinglandouredgimof making short term gains from sales. However, we have sold, and may
acqtimeentow salisetxistiniglassatsmtanagement believes might have higher risk-adjusted returns in light of current
federdicipatadnietiergsio@tess or general economic conditions or to manage our balance sheet as part of our
aradddipbilityingatiag ément months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, we received proceeds of $988.5 million
essp8dtR@8/Ofronilliahe sales of RMBS. Most of these sales in the first quarter of 2020 occurred during the
sekrbadsead ipf dasehc2Rainsiwsufficient cash and liquidity and reduce risk associated with the market turmoil
bBught about by COVID-
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Realized and unrealized gains and losses on RMBS are driven in part by changes in yields and interest
of tatesecusititeh affeat pbetfotioingAs rates increased during the three months ended March 31, 2021, it had a
pegfdiis iGwiastamd REsBMBE interest rate futures contracts are affected by changes in implied forward rates
Tuengblbebepwtiprgspatiodhistorical interest rate data for each quarter end during 2021 to date and 2020.

5 Year 10 Year 15 Year 30 Year Three

U.S. Treasury U.S. Treasury Fixed-Rate Fixed-Rate Month

Raté) Raté" Mortgage Rdte Mortgage Rate LIBOR)

March 31, 2021 0.94% 1.75% 2.39% 3.08% 0.19%
December 31, 2020 0.36% 0.92% 2.22% 2.68% 0.23%
September 30, 2020 0.27% 0.68% 2.39% 2.89% 0.24%
June 30, 2020 0.29% 0.65% 2.60% 3.16% 0.31%
March 31, 2020 0.38% 0.70% 2.89% 3.45% 1.10%

(1) Historical 5 and 10 Year U.S. Treasury Rates are obtained from quoted end of day prices on the Chicago Board Options
(2) Bistbangke30 Year and 15 Year Fixed Rate Mortgage Rates are obtained from Freddie Mac’s Primary Mortgage Market
(3) Bigtegical LIBOR is obtained from the Intercontinental Exchange Benchmark Administration Ltd.

Expenses

Total operating expenses were approximately $3.5 million and $2.1 million for the three months ended
and\2820, 3¢spéctively. The table below presents a breakdown of operating expenses for the three months
and262Maant 2020.

(in thousands)

2021 2020 Change
Management fees $ 1,621% 1,377 % 244
Overhead allocation 404 347 57
Accrued incentive compensation 364 (436) 800
Directors fees and liability insurance 272 260 12
Audit, legal and other professional fees 318 255 63
Other direct REIT operating expenses 421 206 215
Other expenses 93 132 (39)
Total expenses $ 3,493 $ 2,141$ 1,352

We are externally managed and advised by Bimini Advisors, LLC (the “Manager”) pursuant to the terms of a
agresanage Meatmanagement agreement has been renewed through February 20, 2022 and provides for
aptoneticareafigaamkiensiofect to certain termination rights.  Under the terms of the management agreement, the
Mspaegsibie for administering the business activities and day-to-day operations of the Company. The Manager

resabgsmembfaifln the amount of:

One-twelfth of 1.5% of the first $250 million of the Company’s month end equity, as defined in the
DasageMentfrgEE nenthe Company’s month end equity that is greater than $250 million and less than or
aMiahicah200

e One-twelfth of 1.00% of the Company’s month end equity that is greater than $500 million.

The Company is obligated to reimburse the Manager for any direct expenses incurred on its behalf and to pay
CortipaMeémageraite portion of certain overhead costs set forth in the management agreement. Should the
Ramagenéertraigaertent without cause, it will pay the Manager a termination fee equal to three times the average
el gefrgeimend management agreement, before or on the last day of the term of the agreement.
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The following table summarizes the management fee and overhead allocation expenses for each quarter in
2022021 to date and

($ in thousands)

Average Average Advisory Services

Orchid Orchid Management  Overhead
Three Months Ended MBS Equity Fee Allocation Total
March 31, 2021 $ 4,032,716% 453,353 $ 1,621 $ 404 $ 2,025
December 31, 2020 3,633,631 387,503 1,384 442 1,826
September 30, 2020 3,422,564 368,588 1,252 377 1,629
June 30, 2020 3,126,779 361,093 1,268 348 1,616
March 31, 2020 3,269,859 376,673 1,377 347 1,724

Financial Condition:
Mortgage-Backed Securities

As of March 31, 2021, our RMBS portfolio consisted of $4,338.5 million of Agency RMBS at fair value and
coupad anwaigbtebfgcdage During the three months ended March 31, 2021, we received principal
cepayanredtso of $423 tilndlioffor the three months ended March 31, 2020. The average three month
prefey Manth speededaratite goadearere 12.0% and 11.9%, respectively.

The following table presents the 3-month constant prepayment rate (“CPR”) experienced on our
subspoidfalies, ol TaRMBBzed basis, for the quarterly periods presented. CPR is a method of
exeréysingdtigageppgnidhait assumes that a constant fraction of the remaining principal is prepaid each
Spenificallyetlre CPR in the chart below represents the three month prepayment rate of the securities in
tiadagsnectifesatsstitat were not owned for the entire quarter have been excluded from the calculation.
avecdxcudinn pdroedgnf high trading activity can create a very high, and often volatile, reliance on a
kaabl.sample of underlying

Structured

PT RMBS RMBS Total
Three Months Ended Portfolio (%) Portfolio (%) Portfolio (%)
March 31, 2021 9.9 40.3 12.0
December 31, 2020 16.7 44.3 20.1
September 30, 2020 14.3 40.4 17.0
June 30, 2020 13.9 35.3 16.3
March 31, 2020 9.8 22.9 11.9

The following tables summarize certain characteristics of the Company’s PT RMBS and structured RMBS
DecgrifeMiarctpB20: 2021 and

($ in thousands)

Weighted
Percentage Average
of Weighted Maturity
Fair Entire Average in Longest
Asset Category Value Portfolio Coupon Months  Maturity
March 31, 2021
Fixed Rate RMBS $ 4,297,731 99.1% 2.95% 335 1-Mar-51
Total Mortgage-backed Pass-through 4,297,731 99.1% 2.95% 335 1-Mar-51
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Interest-Only Securities 35,521 0.8% 3.98% 264 25-May-50

Inverse Interest-Only Securities 5,284 0.1% 3.77% 311 15-Jun-42
Total Structured RMBS 40,805 0.9% 3.93% 275 25-May-50
Total Mortgage Assets $ 4,338,536 100.0% 3.02% 331 1-Mar-51
December 31, 2020

Fixed Rate RMBS $ 3,560,746 95.5% 3.09% 339 1-Jan-51
Fixed Rate CMOs 137,453 3.7% 4.00% 312  15-Dec-42
Total Mortgage-backed Pass-through 3,698,199 99.2% 3.13% 338 1-Jan-51
Interest-Only Securities 28,696 0.8% 3.98% 268 25-May-50
Total Structured RMBS 28,696 0.8% 3.98% 268 25-May-50
Total Mortgage Assets $ 3,726,895 100.0% 3.19% 333 1-Jan-51

(% in thousands)

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Percentage of Percentage of
Agency Fair Value Entire Portfolio Fair Value Entire Portfolio
Fannie Mae $ 3,439,588 79.3%$ 2,733,960 73.4%
Freddie Mac 898,948 20.7% 992,935 26.6%
Total Portfolio $ 4,338,536 100.0%% 3,726,895 100.0%
March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Weighted Average Pass-through Purchase Price $ 107.56 $ 107.43
Weighted Average Structured Purchase Price $ 18.69 $ 20.06
Weighted Average Pass-through Current Price $ 106.14 $ 108.94
Weighted Average Structured Current Price $ 13.83 $ 10.87
Effective Duratidh 4.090 2.360

(1) Effective duration is the approximate percentage change in price for a 100 bps change in rates. An effective duration of 4.090
incieasesdtatraiease of 1.0% would be expected to cause a 4.090% decrease in  the value of the RMBS in the Company’s
Bversiree 1, Rortfplio An effective duration of 2.360 indicates that an interest rate  increase of 1.0% would be expected to cause
debrs¥¥% in the value of the RMBS in the Company’s investment portfolio at December 31, 2020. These figures include the
HHEYBRToRECHIIIBS not include the effect of the Company’s  funding cost hedges. Effective duration quotes for individual
BHEHHREHSAehe Yield Book, Inc.

The following table presents a summary of portfolio assets acquired during the three months ended
2020 aroicBriRg2¢carities purchased during the period that settled after the end of the period, if any.

($ in thousands)

2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Total Cost Price Yield Total Cost Price Yield
Pass-through RMBS $ 1,971,296% 107.09 1.38% $ 1,334,350% 107.18 2.28%
Structured RMBS 4,807 6.93 0.14 - - 0.00%

Borrowings

As of March 31, 2021, we had established borrowing facilities in the repurchase agreement market with a
bankeraheradhecofimaestidinstitutions and had borrowings in place with 21 of these counterparties. None of
theseotepdeys @nesaffitiotesiviitlis are secured by the Company’s RMBS and cash, and bear interest at
pe\aliaglighakeatraieshaddedeghievrent borrowing facilities provide borrowing capacity in excess of our needs.
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As of March 31, 2021, we had obligations outstanding under the repurchase agreements of approximately
wei$Htdd hvemiiiorborittwaretcost of 0.18%. The remaining maturity of our outstanding repurchase agreement
oBboddipsswitangeddighted taverage remaining maturity of 43 days. Securing the repurchase agreement
ekl wRrobMastimaed262 value, including accrued interest, of approximately $4,285.9 million and a
B&doinieathayesagecasiibdgdd to counterparties of approximately $102.6 million. Through April 30, 2021, we
bavedpeeohadde facititidstamith comparable terms to those that existed at March 31, 2021 with maturities
through October 8, 2021.

The table below presents information about our period end, maximum and average balances of borrowings for
202gaehdatededin020.

($ in thousands)

Difference Between Ending

Ending Maximum Average Borrowings and

Balance of Balance of Balance of Average Borrowings
Three Months Ended Borrowings Borrowings Borrowings Amount Percent
March 31, 2021 $ 4,181,680 $ 4,204,935 $ 3,888,633 $ 293,047 7.54%
December 31, 2020 3,595,586 3,597,313 3,438,444 157,142 4.57%
September 30, 2020 3,281,303 3,286,454 3,228,021 53,282 1.65%
June 30, 2020 3,174,739 3,235,370 2,992,494 182,245 6.09%
March 31, 2020 2,810,250 4,297,621 3,129,178 (318,928) (10.19)%

(1) The lower ending balance relative to the average balance during the quarter ended March 31, 2020 reflects the disposal of
EdVBeraladasdésto maintain cash and liquidity in response to the dislocations  in the financial and mortgage markets resulting

#Heondmeic impacts of COVID-19.  During the quarter ended March 31, 2020, the Company’s investment in RMBS decreased
$642.1 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is our ability to turn non-cash assets into cash, purchase additional investments, repay principal
funchndentersst foiffibonergingsalls and pay dividends. Our principal immediate sources of liquidity include cash
rlercesd upenewiiigrednder repurchase agreements. Our borrowing capacity will vary over time as the
ocmrkay sehetofanicsntePratbalance sheet also generates liquidity on an on-going basis through payments of
pstwtipabanduinkIEBE Wwertfolio. Management believes that we currently have sufficient liquidity and capital
ezsplisitesnaddifahléidoalahtiestments  consistent with the size and nature of our existing RMBS portfolio, (b)
thredrepamepdy noenb ofradiiigends  to the extent required for our continued qualification as a REIT. We may
alstmeeneraddlihguidity edartytsnedebt securities in public offerings or private placements.

Because our PT RMBS portfolio consists entirely of government and agency securities, we do not
con@sitiipgateuhayéegsdifiatash should our liquidity needs ever exceed our immediately available sources of
pastfiolidOuitssirootigiets RIMBEly of governmental agency securities, although they typically do not trade with
BInRiEiBSle HislWesst speeadticipate that we would be able to liquidate such securities readily, even in
distressiesly mésksisatabiicsighoaiew where such securities could be sold in a more stable market. To enhance
mayiglsdge eveorfiothef owestructured RMBS as part of a repurchase agreement funding, but retain the cash
wshets. oflaakignngy agditanaht a modest cost, retain higher levels of cash on hand and decrease the
bkeistendedemdltitetie cialeeltasaats dash.

Our strategy for hedging our funding costs typically involves taking short positions in interest rate futures,
swapsamterésturase swapgrimater other instruments. When the market causes these short positions to decline
meelineangin acaltequittedcdeh. This can reduce our liquidity position to the extent other securities in our
peitfakéodonaust repsice nsugihaasyvia margin calls to offset the derivative related margin calls. If this were
tnagpaitde, siiidiasstof liquidity might force us to reduce the size of the levered portfolio, pledge additional
structured securities to raise 34



funds or risk operating the portfolio with less liquidity.

Our master repurchase agreements have no stated expiration, but can be terminated at any time at our
counpiipariyr Bloheveptionsd theefinitive repurchase agreement under a master repurchase agreement has
besnrerttbecdeinimatgeneyaliyher party. A negotiated termination can occur, but may involve a fee to be paid
twrieateartiiesegkingnézse agreement transaction, as it did during the three months ended March 31, 2020.

Under our repurchase agreement funding arrangements, we are required to post margin at the initiation of
postbé hsprevwdngs thienaiecgin which is a percentage of the market value of the collateral pledged. To the
extattdbikateadkeinyalbe fifidinging transaction declines, the market value of our posted margin will be
restfticigitiorssi d oudiatditabe Guieedelly, if the market value of the asset pledged increases in value, we would
ke oiebecstialiecd izelavnexeess margin returned to us by the counterparty. Our lenders typically value our
plesigedisecadtigaadgibf tour margin and make margin calls as needed, as do we. Typically, but not always, the
traditsoldgegadord foninimaugin calls so as to avoid the need for nuisance mar@ior oadisten eeplaithbssis.
do not specify the haircut; rather haircuts are determined on an individual reqgregmeatsransaction basis.
ehdaghtantha thige 1mdratinsuts on our pledged collateral remained stable and as of March 31, 2021, our
aeigbitaatelgray o Yanfdiie wague of our collateral.

TBAs represent a form of off-balance sheet financing and are accounted for as derivative instruments.
Stat&mefiotén thte Barminedv@alfor additional details on our TBAs). Under certain market conditions, it may be
Tezeomeonitaiufermisriths'adrellive may need to take or make physical delivery of the underlying securities. If we
pleysicedaighiodrp ttakettle a long TBA, we would have to fund our total purchase commitment with cash or
itfuddifinpositign soomdeépambgatively impacted.

Our TBAs are also subject to margin requirements governed by the Mortgage-Backed Securities Division
by diMBEEer dddberftiésCiandrd transaction agreements, which may establish margin levels in excess of the
MB&GE: hathwerestsiolish an initial margin based on the notional value of the TBA, which is subject to increase
dlithEBFdinvated éaitivaiterl dir value of our pledged collateral declines. The MBSD has the sole discretion to
Telasaing ohenepledgéaucollateral securing such contracts. In the event of a margin call, we must generally
tho\ddmeadiinest cliateral on

Settlement of our TBA obligations by taking delivery of the underlying securities as well as satisfying
negativgiyn riegpartroantsiqoidity position. However, since we do not use TBA dollar roll transactions as our
beilaary tisturee ofillfirarcingiequate sources of liquidity to meet such obligations.

As discussed earlier, we invest a portion of our capital in structured Agency RMBS. We generally do not
of oapplyrifenerageéoethisagertiomerent in structured securities replaces the leverage obtained by acquiring PT
setheitiesu@h$endirgkdhenThis structured RMBS strategy has been a core element of the Company’s overall
ingeptioant Hbwtegyr sinediave and may continue to pledge a portion of our structured RMBS in order to raise
it ncagideyelsthdsd geoeriils in order to acquire additional assets.

The following table summarizes the effect on our liquidity and cash flows from contractual obligations for
intefepEXPRS B caQICespRInthagad agreements.

(in thousands)

Obligations Maturing
Within One One to Three Three to Five More than
Year Years Years Five Years Total

Repurchase agreements $ 4,181,680 $ - 8 - 8 - $ 4,181,680
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Interest expense on repurchase agréBments 1,800 - - - 1,800
Totals $ 4,183,480 $ - $ -8 - $ 4,183,480

(1) Interest expense on repurchase agreements is based on current interest rates as of March 31, 2021 and the remaining term
2t liakilities existing

In future periods, we expect to continue to finance our activities in a manner that is consistent with our
repawiiest cppdiorsitshrovgbf March 31, 2021, we had cash and cash equivalents of $211.4 million. We
getierafesmcasinfipasand $itd&@st payments on our RMBS and had average repurchase agreements
thastardinmorils S880 Midien duringn21.

Stockholders’ Equity

On January 23, 2020, we entered into the January 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement with three sales agents
we pontdiaficioantisell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $200,000,000 of shares of our common
fackvisréraesmedians be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. We issued a total of
thé 1rdZrg2026 Eodéty Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of $19.8 million, and net proceeds
8fi epproXidyatelyt of commissions and fees, prior to its termination in August 2020.

On August 4, 2020, we entered into the August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement with four sales agents
mayuffsranidassihigidmeaime to time, up to an aggregate amount of $150,000,000 of shares of our common stock
urérepeactions thatat the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. Through March 31, 2021, we
B uEs Hedtahefres under the August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of
apgrastrpaselyetitdot apfioximately $53.2 million, net of commissions and fees.

On January 20, 2021, we entered into the January 2021 Underwriting Agreement with J.P. Morgan Securities
relatih§ ot diigand sale of 7,600,000 shares of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of our
trerDaensinglolicsnant to the January 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $5.20 per share. In addition, we granted
dftiddeogaureh3@edayp to an additional 1,140,000 shares of our common stock on the same terms and conditions,
whéebisked. iMigan January 21, 2021. The closing of the offering of 8,740,000 shares of our common stock
poadrredttomelapraeyeds, to us of approximately $45.2 million, net of offering expenses.

On March 2, 2021 we entered into the “March 2021 Underwriting Agreement with J.P. Morgan, relating to the
8,0a0fenarshaads of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of our common stock from the Company
MiesreROl t;derwriting Agreement at $5.45 per share. In addition, we granted J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to
pdditiasel Up200eM00 shares of our common stock on the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan exercised
pofAI. ahdelsdirdy of the offering of 9,200,000 shares of our common stock occurred on March 5, 2021, with net
appresisdtelys$H0.1 million, net of offering expenses payable.

Outlook
Economic Summary

During the first quarter of 2021 the economy made tremendous strides towards recovery from the
EvidxDueDsfl Shpaadeweity was pervasive. New cases of COVID-19, which peaked around the turn of
thenyieanthyodsratkd hospitalizations and deaths. As aresult of the U.S. Senate run-off elections in early
vamaarpn bythsfmdichts, one party was now in control of the White House and both houses of
OongtissluT himtikageebeing tpassed that was at the high end of market expectations - $1.9 trillion. The
Anteri@i? 1Reasusiftiad into law on March 11, 2021. This marked the third legislative act related to the

nation’s recovery from
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the COVID-19 pandemic, after the $2.2 trillion CARES Act (described below), which passed on March
gili@o20ansblitiaté@. Appropriations  Act of 2021, which contained $900 billion of COVID-19 relief and
RBs2@hed>iveDdoemimmentum the administration had after passing the American Rescue Plan Act of
8hartly Presidétet Bideunced plans for a $2 trillion-plus infrastructure bill. The vaccine roll-out, which
bz asdeingatoved to the point where the U.S. became a world leader. The U.S. was well on its way
tvee ) Oimiiomtyirculations  were administered by April 21, 2021, well ahead of even the most
bptimisitig girojeetiorer at Ebenomic data released over the course of the first quarter has been
byrivistemtiydsenf stiondus Fareelis during the first quarter, consumers have been spending. Retail sales,
fopnmewsetes, dechaitter durable goods are all benefitting from the stimulus and considerable pent-up
dppeard.toJub @anelhrating quickly, and the unemployment rate has dropped to 6.0%. All of the
dboepmantioliedciitféation fears. The most obvious evidence of potential price pressures relate to
sapply siodagmsmef goods and commodities caused by the combination of still constrained production
that hmwgibgglemtmdurface across the economy.

The factors highlighted above have led to a surging economy, which grew at an annualized rate of
quattef, Hoepdnétve dlest impacted the financial markets. The various broad equity indices are making
fregyuairtibasidighsdooaporate debt issuance levels — both investment grade and high yield —are ator
refeatdugrdhdedetvand for capital and investor appetite for yield. U.S. Treasury rates, at least longer-
sigmificatelly hBlve tésepear U.S. Treasury note yield increased from 0.916% to 1.742% over the course
ofdreafiesbf q82r6ebamis points, and the U.S. Treasury curve has steepened substantially. The market
kapantatemhspfor a recovery from the pandemic and return to normalcy significantly. The Federal
BresarVighithdo tigher gates, areferring to them as a sign of economic strength. However, when the
mahetdeaterattemptethtotipricg of the rate increases by the Fed, the Fed has pushed back against such
eftartirieave |dnigede been successful, and current market pricing only reflects one interest rate hike by
the end of 2022.

Legislative Response and the Federal Reserve

Congress passed the CARES Act quickly in response to the pandemic’s emergence last spring and
additibovmklbgveitition over the ensuing months. However, as certain provisions of the CARES Act
eMpplemesiah asemployment insurance last July, there appeared to be a need for additional stimulus for
viite dwosange fo teapandemic that occurred as cold weather set in, particularly over the Christmas
hbtiay theAsederdiogedernment eventually passed an additional stimulus package in late December of
Roranti2024in lmaddition, the Fed has provided, and continues to provide, as much support to the
asitkeds withitherecoanstraints of its mandate. During the third quarter of 2020, the Fed unveiled a new
frametaioyk ptdioysed on average inflation rate targeting that allows the Fed Funds rate to remain quite
kxpeeted i6 iteftaporaridy surpass the 2% target level. Further, the Fed will look past the presence of very
spbtldtathmyrbarketesent at the time. This marks a significant shift from their prior policy framework,
whéchphagrfeotsede @s théey indicator of impending inflation. Adherence to this policy could steepen
t#edi@t-lwasmajesaoodd remain low for a considerable period but longer-term rates could rise given
thiidfied’ poiteietidibn tanlabove 2% in the future as the economy more fully recovers. As mentioned
abovsjrpisadppwaPdRI mew that effective vaccines have been found and inoculations are distributed at
an accelerating pace.

Interest Rates

Interest rates steadily increased throughout the first quarter as described above and levels of
Moitgplied atesatdliovlyodectiserklat the end of 2020 as originators added capacity and could handle ever
produaciiog Yelwiseof This trend in mortgage rates quickly reversed during the first quarter of 2021 as
espsdid@anntaiadrebsgary and March. With the increase in interest rates, prepayment activity slowed.
AoempayrRIMB IS thgverse with sufficient rate incentive to economically refinance has declined from
approkizn2telp epiraxithately 46% at the end of the first quarter. However, the spread between rates
andildigémiaibdrrpieleren a current coupon mortgage, known as the primary/secondary spread, has
continued to compress. 37



The spread is still slightly above long-term average levels so further compression is possible, meaning
ksterovw@raitablddtoremain at current levels even if U.S. Treasury rates increased further. Since the end of
thtefiest rgqtemtdrave declined by approximately 20 basis points in the case of the 10-year U.S. Treasury
podpaymecdievell, on RMBS securities are likely to remain high unless U.S. Treasury rates increase
above current levels.

The Agency RMBS Market

The market conditions that prevailed throughout the first quarter were not conducive to mortgage
apapefformdrigh. yieldadionds, all fixed income sectors had negative returns for quarter. Interest rates
vese ebpidigdand\geratiiffMBS had negative absolute and excess returns for the first quarter of -1.2%
tmth018%4, Sedpeetiusigs and LIBOR/swaps). There is a benefit to higher interest rates, and as interest
letetsrdeelimedpaymeiMortgage Bankers Association refinance index declined from approximately 4700
to appyoxiaratety Z800 in early April 2021, before rebounding slightly in mid-April 2021. The Agency
R\IB S saeartielcobifinteaded with two separate and distinct sub-markets. Lower coupon fixed rate
thootgag8sh Ycowrenmurohdse®h by the Fed. Fed purchase activity maintains substantial price pressure
anddhéyesersfipbog) attractive TBA dollar roll drops. Higher coupons in the TBA market do not have
thedrersdd. oinffeattantly, the Fed tends to take the worst performing collateral out of the market. The
pbsgmagesfofFddgher coupons means the market is left to absorb still very high prepayment speeds on
trasenebtadtieenagghtés eliminate the economic incentive to refinance. The market expects
pid ey odelcigreeasdbponsout” sets in — a phenomenon whereby refinancing activity declines as
befinaneirsg aikcertivesd fior an extended period. Through the March 2021 prepayment report released in
teadgopril, Whitshasnett participants continue to favor specified pools that have favorable prepayment
tharefiteaistiesintbabtivete the premium over generic TBA securities has declined significantly with the
reckraid osfirssxacdy the increase in rates available to borrowers.

Recent Legislative and Regulatory Developments

The Fed conducted large scale overnight repo operations from late 2019 until July 2020 to address
Tredmnptidgendy thebUaBd Agency MBS financing markets. These operations ceased in July 2020 after
tuscesdfallypdaked volatile funding costs that had threatened to cause disruption across the financial
system.

The Fed has taken a number of other actions to stabilize markets as a result of the impacts of the
MacOfROA, ptiredErticanimounced a $700 billion asset purchase program to provide liquidity to the
BB SreaslptsanthAdartalso lowered the Fed Funds rate to a range of 0.0% — 0.25%, after having
Blneddy #bevbyebOthpsedrlier in the month. Later that same month the Fed announced a program to
aoquirgedcy. RMBsSuingbe amounts needed to support smooth market functioning. With these
pupcbasdssubatietiaigndiomently, the Fed is committed to purchasing $80 billion of U.S. Treasuries and
FAOBSH izarchofmgémcyChairman Powell and the Fed have reiterated their commitment to this level of
asslingsihesethait svarting on June 30, 2020. Chairman Powell has also maintained that the Fed
exdeschs tiois meirthimtitehesEed is confident that the economy has weathered the pandemic and its
anpastoorrackntadchisstévity maximum employment and price stability goals. The Fed has taken
vartairs otitherfotegsntoseppodrkets, to support mortgage servicers and to implement various portions of
Reli€hrmmaviEgeonaidic Security (“CARES”) Act.

The CARES Act was passed by Congress and signed into law by President Trump on March 27,
progiozd. mang GAREDS dicect support to individuals and small businesses in order to stem the steep
detiliite. in Thisonwani®2 trillion COVID-19 relief bill, among other things, provided for direct payments to
epdb 8rtedoan argakingncreased unemployment benefits for up to four months (on top of state benefits),
doddiaglto poygitars, loans and investments to businesses, states and municipalities and grants to the
22 2hdastsidnt Apimp signed an additional funding bill into law that provides an additional $484
itierdoblsurstimgitbusinesses, hospitals, health care providers and additional coronavirus testing efforts.
Various provisions of 18



the CARES Act began to expire in July 2020, including a moratorium on evictions (July 25, 2020),
bepafitetulyedplB@R6htand a moratorium on foreclosures (August 31, 2020). On August 8, 2020,
Presidtive Jrdenp 1894 directing the Department of Health and Human Services, the Centers for
Brszestiol ¢i@Candthe Department of Housing and Urban Development, and Department of the
Terewsuayilyo hakeresedantiel awvictions and foreclosures, including through temporary financial assistance.

On December 27, 2020, President Trump signed into law an additional $900 billion coronavirus aid
Conz=aildajechsAppropfitions Act of 2021, providing for extensions of many of the CARES Act policies
additioreg restisfasT veeflaakage provided for, among other things, direct payments to most Americans with
egsdbani®sni®0f a year, extension of unemployment benefits through March 14, 2021, funding for
prethesattle mrosfderscineans to qualified businesses, funding for rental assistance and funding for
20Rdohe G Cansamgd2fljidance extending eviction moratoriums for covered persons through March 31,
fother extiehdedsto June 30, 2021 on March 29, 2021. In addition, on February 9, 2021, the FHFA
foreolosted thadraberium begun under the CARES Act for loans backed by Fannie Mae and Freddie
Macatoriltine fevietidestate owned by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac were extended until March 31, 2021,
wxktiendechtofuttiver 30, 2021 on February 25, 2021. On February 16, 2021, the U.S. Housing and Urban
Depalbpraeindnnounced the extension of the FHA eviction and foreclosure moratorium to June 30, 2021.

On March 11, 2021, the $1.9 trillion American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 was signed into law. This
furtbénedldise pFegharal government’s efforts to stabilize the economy and provide assistance to sectors of
thdfeopglétiom thidlvarious physical and economic effects of the pandemic.

In January 2019, the Trump administration made statements of its plans to work with Congress to
andoveztdig FdanianMegpectations to announce a framework for the development of a policy for
tioanremefwsive slhousiom September 30, 2019, the FHFA announced that Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
imereadllothed tcapital buffers to $25 billion and $20 billion, respectively, from the prior limit of $3 billion
elichatBys Ietshteduddnie Mae and Freddie Mac being privatized and represents the first concrete step
cafeha rodoh tiBSED, 2020, the FHFA released a proposed rule on a new regulatory framework for the
Bpfsnmerttitioteaeksiskebased capital framework and minimum leverage capital requirements. The final
fraeewoitke feviheaGiBEs was published in the federal register in December 2020. On January 14,
2P FHRA Bx@culedadatienadreements allowing the GSEs to continue to retain capital up to their
hedfdesons présionibed, inrttleddegember rule. These letter agreements provide, in part, (i) there will be
norsdt\fedarship until all material litigation is settled and the GSE has common equity Tier 1 capital of
6it) a8k sofwth esselly; with the FHFA's regulatory capital framework, (iii) higher-risk single-family
heregigetedqtositiorentwikvels, and (iv) the U.S. Treasury and the FHFA will establish a timeline and
retarassHewévkne @SEefinitive proposals or legislation have been released or enacted with respect to
eadggghtrship, unwinding the GSEs, or materially reducing the roles of the GSEs in the U.S.
mortgage market.

In 2017, policymakers announced that LIBOR will be replaced by December 31, 2021. The directive
factihatdpamked aby timeomfortable contributing to the LIBOR panel given the shortage of underlying
trassdetielss andwtiieHiability associated with submitting an unfounded level. The ICE Benchmark
Aslmdingtistiator iroftd) SapAUBPR, has confirmed that it will cease publication of (i) the one-week and
settingmitnid&Matelp G&llowing the LIBOR publication on December 31, 2021, and (ii) the overnight and
o tthé8D EilB&T sBttings immediately following the LIBOR publication on June 30, 2023. A joint
atatesriées akeyrepaltderyo cease entering into new contracts that use USD LIBOR as a reference rate
Peoentdter 3har2021. The Alternative Reference Rates Committee, a steering committee comprised of
lnsgigutioBs, fihaagadposed replacing USD-LIBOR with a new SOFR, a rate based on U.S. repo trading.
Mahit roapk&abelifows to five years to complete the transition to SOFR, for certain, despite the 2021
domifpemceNd vifllsmavitoatehearefully as it will potentially become the new benchmark for hedges and a
mvegtoentserdétiggdime, however, no consensus exists as to what rate or rates may become accepted
alternatives to LIBOR.
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Effective January 1, 2021, Fannie Mae, in alignment with Freddie Mac, will extend the timeframe for
buyitsitiptitiquetor &iagle-Family Uniform Mortgage-Backed Securities (UMBS) and Mortgage-Backed
Becuritisec(MBSY fromsed monthly payments to twenty-four consecutively missed monthly payments
(e=). Zhinamehstipasframe will apply to outstanding single-family pools and newly issued single-family
peftastaddvbes fiatuary 2021 factors were released on the fourth business day in February 2021.

For Agency RMBS investors, when a delinquent loan is bought out of a pool of mortgage loans, the
frometinemiobfishiddosmme as a total prepayment of the loan. The respective GSEs currently anticipate,
HelireyezntHaéns will be repurchased in most cases before the 24-month deadline under one of the
filowing exceptions listed

*a loanthatis paidin full, or where the related lien is released and/or the note debtis satisfied or

fargivear repurchased by a seller/servicer under applicable selling and servicing requirements;

*a loan entering a permanent modification, which generally requires it to be removed from the
modfie3tiddutingl aeyiod, the loan will remain in the MBS until the trial period ends;

*a loan subject to a short sale or deed-in-lieu of foreclosure; or

*a loan referred to foreclosure.

Because of these exceptions, the GSEs currently believe based on prevailing assumptions and
chamgeketlcdradiBamrdythismarginal impact on prepayment speeds, in aggregate. Cohort level impacts
mase tream. it etdearie referred to foreclosure are historically referred within six months of delinquency.
Fpecdisgaee aftenteidhdepends on delinquency levels, borrower response, and referral to foreclosure
timelines.

The scope and nature of the actions the U.S. government or the Fed will ultimately undertake are
continkedwreaalte wiiispecially in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, President Biden’s new administration
amthéhEmiésd Statgsess

Effect on Us

Regulatory developments, movements in interest rates and prepayment rates affect us in many
follavepg; including the

Effects on our Assets

A change in or elimination of the guarantee structure of Agency RMBS may increase our costs (if,
fee$oneseanple orgeapgirgeals to change our investment strategy altogether. For example, the elimination
efrtrebigaasbrigency RMBS may cause us to change our investment strategy to focus on non-Agency
RMBSravhich isttorsignificantly increase our monitoring of the credit risks of our investments in
poefitymeotingiest rate and

Lower long-term interest rates can affect the value of our Agency RMBS in a number of ways. If
relabiregdpy foanfca¢esn apart, to the refinancing problems described above), lower long-term interest
diteigbandoceaseAtencalBAMBS. This is because investors typically place a premium on assets with
meikethyigdsre Alttmrghdower long-term interest rates may increase asset values in our portfolio, we
may fustdseinalslienitanhywgatlding assets.

If prepayment levels increase, the value of our Agency RMBS affected by such prepayments may
a pdecijrz. promighecbaseclerates the effective term of an Agency RMBS, which would shorten the
retdstiod wrivigd wisichiem above-market returns (assuming the yield on the prepaid asset is higher than
prepatviedsrogdeds may not be able to be reinvested in similar-yielding assets. Agency RMBS backed
hiymiregesfesateirare more susceptible to prepayment risk because holders of those mortgages are

most likely to refinance to 40



a lower rate. 10s and lIOs, however, may be the types of Agency RMBS most sensitive to increased
pegagadheratdder of an 10 or 11O receives no principal payments, the values of IOs and [IOs are
exigtelyagepralprinaipeindalance on the underlying mortgages. If the principal balance is eliminated due
IO pegspytiety, BOsoamel worthless. Although increased prepayment rates can negatively affect the value
tbéyimaNasthandplidsite effect on POs. Because POs act like zero-coupon bonds, meaning they are
theichzmedlae aatiddoave do  effective interest rate based on the discount and the term of the underlying
[rapagmizrcreatss iwould reduce the effective term of our POs and accelerate the yields earned on
thossasessuts nehiokomeuld

Higher long-term rates can also affect the value of our Agency RMBS. As long-term rates rise,
borratesraaddabléseo This tends to cause prepayment activity to slow and extend the expected average
fitrvef nistiegexmasted average life of the mortgage cash flows increases, coupled with higher
AigeoaytRMBS, theclinglsie §ome of the instruments the Company uses to hedge our Agency RMBS
eatechgiuressh swapteasst swaptions, are stable average life instruments. This means that to the extent
tochesigsmir iAgEnnyeREBS assets, our hedges may not adequately protect us from price declines, and
rtegadifezty ingyact our book value. It is for this reason we use interest only securities in our portfolio. As
enpexdbdratesaige, lifbeof these securities increases, causing generally positive price movements as the
nashbépwsndrsivease the longer the underlying mortgages remain outstanding. This makes interest only
bedgetiestrdewimntsiefor pass-through Agency RMBS.

As described above, the Agency RMBS market began to experience severe dislocations in mid-
the ldepolond02(heslthrasdimafket turmoil brought about by COVID-19. In March of 2020, the Fed
porchaseAdeat)it RMBSE and U.S. Treasuries in the amounts needed to support smooth market
flabtizeitigthevAigariaygdMBS market, a commitment it reaffirmed at all subsequent Fed meetings,
meletinggintA pribstfr@dant If the Fed modifies, reduces or suspends its purchases of Agency RMBS, our
coddtbeenegaiitielljo impacted. Further, the moratoriums on foreclosures and evictions described above
paitdikiidy deédtayts on loans that would otherwise be bought out of Agency MBS pools as described
abiiovate Pepkridingadrthéfereclosure or evictions, when and if it occurs, these loans may be removed
freay wheepsgluntzedhiththis were to occur, it would have the effect of delaying a prepayment on the
Surhdimg’s Asetheitiegjocihtil of the Company’s Agency RMBS assets were acquired at a premium to par,
thisedlietdred tealized yield on the asset in question.

Because we base our investment decisions on risk management principles rather than anticipated
ratenpvemnardiatile interest rate environment we may allocate more capital to structured Agency RMBS
WithstHmrverttraatioasurities have a lower sensitivity to changes in long-term interest rates than other
atiestpldesudigite mayexposure to changes in long-term interest rates by investing in I0s and 110s,
diffietebhtdeabjtiite® to changes in long-term interest rates than PT RMBS, particularly PT RMBS

bastkeaigds. fixed-rate
Effects on our borrowing costs

We leverage our PT RMBS portfolio and a portion of our structured Agency RMBS with principal
of shaldrtees thepugbhdise aggeement transactions. The interest rates on our debt are determined by the
sranktetermnintensebisaie the Fed Funds rate or LIBOR would increase our borrowing costs, which could
sffexddifrthaterastmateorresponding increase in the interest we earn on our assets. This would be most
prevagemtoyifRMBSpbeicked by fixed rate mortgage loans because the interest rate on a fixed-rate

nientgegevViearthaagls moarket rates may change.

In order to protect our netinterest margin against increases in short-term interest rates, we may
swagrgewhitb ietzreemically convert our floating-rate repurchase agreement debt to fixed-rate debt, or
utdiremetitsr bedhiag Eurodollar, Fed Funds and T-Note futures contracts or interest rate swaptions.
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Summary

COVID-19 continues to dominate the performance of the markets and economy. Inthe case of the
thisfimstagtiéhreerret@0ery from the pandemic, in stark contrast to the first quarter of 2020 when the
befidéheodicienengeddrntdriven by many factors — the emergence and widespread distribution of a
sabstfdiztivgovacoment stimulus and accommodative monetary policy. The economy is recovering
eapeffeciivetvacimergbasallofved pent-up demand to lead to a surge in demand for goods and services,
niudtiptefurtireds bgf stimulus checks and numerous other means of financial support provided by the
gwvErimard. bEmafitoigl from extremely lose financial conditions, abundant liquidity, high risk tolerance
dathand ifesatédbles.

The surge in economic activity during the first quarter of 2021 and expectations for activity to return
muth seereantfemianteipided caused interest rates to rise rapidly as well. The yield on the 10-year
loSedsedduyy omete82 basis points and closed the quarter at approximately 1.75%, not far below the
laetd)dsueryhdigfosediiedpandemic emerged last March. In addition, the U.S. Treasury curve has
Haepananlithectile indrikettion caused by the combination of abundant liquidity via government stimulus,
towsditforenaimd very strong demand for all types of goods and services. Constrained supply of needed
maputsistedalsymarigoods, such as micro chips, and even labor have exacerbated the upward pressure
ba specei$ thtesenmaine fressures prove to be temporary or lead to more sustained inflation. The Fed
tralsitesy th&effests rapgket pricing is roughly in line with the Fed’s view as the Eurodollar and Fed
Fafledd afutonest maekisterestiyrate hike by the end of 2022.

The Agency RMBS market did not perform well during the first quarter as market conditions —
incnexuely visiatjityatesedrid extension fears in mortgage cash flows, driving convexity related selling and
Hyercy VRUEBB\ghad negative absolute and excess returns for the first quarter of 2021 of -1.2% and -
0.8 T respadttselgn(bbtBOKR/swaps). A positive impact from higher rates and lowered prepayment
premdtatiensoitizitiver which enhances netincome all else equal. The Mortgage Bankers Association
fedfmaameroxdeatelgchT@d in early January 2021 to approximately 2900 in early April, before rebounding
wlaghthe casedfapritucAof 2020, the Agency RMBS market continues to be essentially bifurcated with
sub-sepdveie drovdistioapon fixed rate mortgages, coupons of 1.5% through 2.5%, are purchased by
the Selistantidiepdfiefoassure and attractive TBA dollar roll drops. Higher coupons in the TBA market
dbred bavehabeshesefihe market is left to absorb still very high prepayment speeds on these securities
anoaiEs tbalenimatteisdre economic incentive to refinance. The market expects prepayments on higher
deapoasiswiluenentuaibets in, although this has yet to occur. One final element to poor MBS
peafonpacicef fughttes tategeonibe premiums paid for specified pools. The premium over generic TBA
sigpifiti@sthhagittettimeeduced refinance incentive caused by the increase in rates available to borrowers.

Now that the containment of the COVID-19 pandemic appears to be within sight, at least in the U.S.,
as wiheveoenantystorddifieto should return to pre-pandemic norms. The key questions the market must
tpoppid relidtegdinghether there have been any permanent changes that will result, including, for
presaplesindatibingryfrom the unprecedented government stimulus and monetary quantitative easing by
the rradly tieelimplagicalf advancements that were born out of the pandemic, such as employees’ ability to
effactieliytheodesire to live in congested cities and the implications for commercial real estate values for
the\ciieiswirdt toarefurn to, and the willingness to gather in large numbers or travel by air. These factors
witinnpettyrtatdheeextent they impact the levels of interest rates and the efficacy of refinancing
gpddifitalignagenewyomic activity

Critical Accounting Estimates
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Our condensed financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. GAAP requires our
sonmeatepplaxm@ttd swfective decisions and assessments. Our most critical accounting estimates involve
desadenmatalwhich could significantly affect reported assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. There
bhsadesetorour critical accounting estimates as discussed in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year
8ndead0ecember

Capital Expenditures

At March 31, 2021, we had no material commitments for capital expenditures.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At March 31, 2021, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
Dividends

In addition to other requirements that must be satisfied to qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual

stockhidigeds ¢6 auleast 90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the deduction for
dikdtiating paidreidcapital gains. REIT taxable income (loss) is computed in accordance with the Code, and
taambar ¢geatibran our financial statement net income (loss) computed in accordance with GAAP. These
biftskeodas primarily relate to the recognition of interest income on RMBS, unrealized gains and losses on

BB 8zatiehtbélosses on derivative instruments that are treated as funding hedges for tax purposes.

We intend to pay regular monthly dividends to our stockholders and have declared the following
conavidiemdsf sincdRike

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Per Share

Year Amount Total

2013 $ 1.395 $ 4,662
2014 2.160 22,643
2015 1.920 38,748
2016 1.680 41,388
2017 1.680 70,717
2018 1.070 55,814
2019 0.960 54,421
2020 0.790 53,570
2021 - YTD 0.260 23,374
Totals $ 11.915$ 365,337

(1) On April 14, 2021, the Company declared a dividend of $0.065 per share to be paid on May 26, 2021. The effect of this
theidebie isoekidadt is not reflected in the Company’s financial statements as of March 31, 2021.

Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities are interest rate sensitive in nature. As a result, interest rates and
inflghee fastguerformance far more so than does inflation. Changes in interest rates do not necessarily
toladlaneratith or changes in inflation rates. Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP
disdiriburtions will be determined by our Board of Directors consistent with our obligation to distribute to our
EHaskBO/eos atir REIT taxable income on an annual basis in order to maintain our REIT qualification; in each
eabigitiesrand balance sheet are measured with reference to historical cost and/or fair market value without
edlaidering
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the exposure to loss resulting from changes in market factors such as interest rates,
excluregm ratessreynmodity prices and equity prices. The primary market risks that we are exposed to are
prigpagtmatd risk, spread risk, liquidity risk, extension risk and counterparty credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary and tax policies,
intedoatiostid @ecdnomic and political considerations and other factors beyond our control.

Changes in the general level of interest rates can affect our net interest income, which is the difference
intehbesiviesonte earned on interest-earning assets and the interest expense incurred in connection with our
Irabildsd)dgraffecting the spread between our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.
Dhenegésateshedleatsofaffect the rate of prepayments of our securities and the value of the RMBS that
sorestttoenbportfolio, which affects our net income, ability to realize gains from the sale of these assets and
abiiitheoavoenant,that we can borrow against these securities.

We may utilize a variety of financial instruments in order to limit the effects of changes in interest rates on
opesations. The principal instruments that we use are futures contracts, interest rate swaps and swaptions.
iftsésements are intended to serve as an economic hedge against future interest rate increases on our
egpasgshastborrowings. Hedging techniques are partly based on assumed levels of prepayments of our

@re Hlower or faster than assumed, the life of the Agency RMBS will be longer or shorter,
thiei effeciivenessiof any hedging strategies we may use and may cause losses on such transactions.
Hedbimg shrateggesf derivative securities are highly complex and may produce volatile returns. Hedging
tiectedhbw shereuésorelating to REIT qualification.  In order to preserve our REIT status, we may be forced
tetlgimintignaaction at a time when the transaction is most needed.

Our profitability and the value of our investment portfolio (including derivatives used for hedging

adveuspbsaffeoteg Haring any period as a result of changing interest rates, including changes in the forward
ield curve.

Y Our portfolio of PT RMBS is typically comprised of adjustable-rate RMBS (“ARMs”), fixed-rate RMBS
adjastdbigbride RMBS. We generally seek to acquire low duration assets that offer high levels of protection
framayioregdgerovided that they are reasonably priced by the market.  Although the duration of an individual
absapgeads a result of changes in interest rates, we strive to maintain a hedged PT RMBS portfolio with an
offdté/thdoratbnThe stated contractual final maturity of the mortgage loans underlying our portfolio of PT
RGBS genterdilyyears. However, the effect of prepayments of the underlying mortgage loans tends to
shohtdiowsefresultinginvestments substantially. Prepayments occur for various reasons, including refinancing
ofartgieyhsnand loan payoffs in connection with home sales, and borrowers paying more than their
pelyerkiidsl lwhich accelerates the amortization of the loans.

The duration of our IO and 11O portfolios will vary greatly depending on the structural features of the
prepagoriidsactiityilwill always affect the cash flows associated with the securities, the interest only nature
o&lBs thair durations to become extremely negative when prepayments are high, and less negative when
[repayiepéyerents affect the durations of [10s similarly, but the floating rate nature of the coupon of 110s
(elaield itoithveterlyl of one month LIBOR) causes their price movements, and model duration, to be affected
byptbhamgayinents and one month LIBOR, both current and anticipated levels. As a result, the duration of

HBseayitiesallill

Prepayments on the loans underlying our RMBS can alter the timing of the cash flows from the
underlying loans to us. m



As a result, we gauge the interest rate sensitivity of our assets by measuring their effective duration. While
med#igésthatimice sensitivity of a bond to movements in interest rates, effective duration captures both the
nteresieatés and the fact that cash flows to a mortgage related security are altered when interest rates
wioer .tAecomliragly/interest rate on a mortgage loan is substantially above prevailing interest rates in the
chaekenthéseffectiias collateralized by such loans can be quite low because of expected prepayments.

We face the risk that the market value of our PT RMBS assets will increase or decrease at different rates
ourtstndwiedfRMBS or liabilities, including our hedging instruments. Accordingly, we assess our interest
esstiennistinigythe duration of our assets and the duration of our liabilities. We generally calculate duration using
pariyundidiets. However, empirical results and various third party models may produce different duration
sambescioitiae.

The following sensitivity analysis shows the estimated impact on the fair value of our interest rate-
andshedgir easitsnnastef March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, assuming rates instantaneously fall 200
bps, fall 50Mps, rise 50 bps, rise 100 bps and rise 200 bps, adjusted to reflect the impact of convexity, which
f the samsatvity of our hedge positions and Agency RMBS’ effective duration to movements in interest
rates.

All changes in value in the table below are measured as percentage changes from the investment
net pedfdlicalutuat dnel base interest rate scenario. The base interest rate scenario assumes interest rates
projquipaymenf March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

Actual results could differ materially from estimates, especially in the current market environment. To
thesdeecsiitentdbair other assumptions do not hold true, which is likely in a period of high price volatility,
bt diBeunltsakgitially from projections and could be larger or smaller than the estimates in the table below.
tfesentmodfels were employed in the analysis, materially different projections could result. Lastly, while
tefdatddhmetstimated impact of interest rate increases and decreases on a static portfolio, we may from time
td tinreagehaypecurities as a part of the overall management of our investment portfolio.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Portfolio

Market Book
Change in Interest Rate Valué)) Valué@
As of March 31, 2021
-200 Basis Points (0.93)% (8.66)%
-100 Basis Points 0.03% 0.29%
-50 Basis Points 0.20% 1.87%
+50 Basis Points (0.60)% (5.61)%
+100 Basis Points (1.45)% (13.50)%
+200 Basis Points (3.57)% (33.27)%
As of December 31, 2020
-200 Basis Points 2.43% 21.85%
-100 Basis Points 1.35% 12.08%
-50 Basis Points 0.69% 6.18%
+50 Basis Points (0.90)% (8.03)%
+100 Basis Points (2.39)% (21.42)%
+200 Basis Points (6.60)% (59.22)%

(1) Interest rate sensitivity is derived from models that are dependent on inputs and assumptions provided by third parties as well
Babager, and assumes there are no changes in mortgage spreads and assumes a static portfolio. Actual results could differ
theteriadijirfrates.

(2) Includes the effect of derivatives and other securities used for hedging purposes.

(3) Estimated dollar change in investment portfolio value expressed as a percent of the total fair value of our investment portfolio as

(4) EBStuceddtlar change in portfolio value expressed as a percent of stockholders' equity as of such date.
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In addition to changes in interest rates, other factors impact the fair value of our interest rate-sensitive
sucimasstineestt@pe of the yield curve, market expectations as to future interest rate changes and other
Accaedioghditiottse event of changes in actual interest rates, the change in the fair value of our assets would
tikel\sliffen afvomre and such difference might be material and adverse to our stockholders.

Prepayment Risk

Because residential borrowers have the option to prepay their mortgage loans at par at any time, we face
we thidl gxkehigince a return of principal on our investments faster than anticipated. Various factors affect
thertggatpedpelyments occur, including changes in the level of and directional trends in housing prices,
gdasrsl Etespmic conditions, loan age and size, loan-to-value ratio, the location of the property and social
aoddittonsgsghditiionally, changes to government sponsored entity underwriting practices or other
goukstaisersignificgrdmsmpact prepayment rates or expectations. Generally, prepayments on Agency
paiB 8sindredisggduonigage interest rates and decrease during periods of rising mortgage interest rates.
hlolvadwengHie theycase. \We may reinvest principal repayments at a yield that is lower or higher than the
ingksbnehg thpaidffecting our net interest income by altering the average yield on our assets.

Spread Risk

When the market spread widens between the yield on our Agency RMBS and benchmark interest rates,
valwricaeltdodesline if the value of our Agency RMBS falls by more than the offsetting fair value increases on
mathedgmg tied to the underlying benchmark interest rates. We refer to this as "spread risk" or "basis risk."
assosiatentiwidh our mortgage assets and the resulting fluctuations in fair value of these securities can occur
tiowgesdenbefchmark interest rates and may relate to other factors impacting the mortgage and fixed
Bunas raatkaltsr anticipated monetary policy actions by the Fed, market liquidity, or changes in required
thffeserftratsetorConsequently, while we use futures contracts and interest rate swaps and swaptions to
atieingt mogyesdstinterest rates, such instruments typically will not protect our net book value against spread
risk.

Liquidity Risk

The primary liquidity risk for us arises from financing long-term assets with shorter-term borrowings
agraemegitsrepurarsssds that are pledged to secure repurchase agreements are Agency RMBS and cash. As
20RMrete Biad unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $211.4 million and unpledged securities of
aplicoximaténei$@lirgyGsecurities pledged to us) available to meet margin calls on our repurchase agreements
aodtamisatind for other corporate purposes. However, should the value of our Agency RMBS pledged as
vallatavbar therivative instruments suddenly decrease, margin calls relating to our repurchase and derivative
agui@meregase, causing an adverse change in our liquidity position. Further, there is no assurance that we
alilleatovagseye (or roll) our repurchase agreements. In addition, our counterparties have the option to
{(ncaegiserequinameutts) on the assets we pledge against repurchase agreements, thereby reducing the
boroomethagearsban asset even if they agree to renew or roll the repurchase agreement. Significantly higher
rerteegsocgirability to leverage our portfolio or even force us to sell assets, especially if correlated with asset

fasterderelpasrant rates on our assets.
Extension Risk

The projected weighted average life and the duration (or interest rate sensitivity) of our investments is
Mabagedsomssumptions regarding the rate at which the borrowers will prepay the underlying mortgage
lesnfutireenerdtaaie and interest rate swaps and swaptions to help manage our funding cost on our
pwadtthatisterdst rates rise. These hedging instruments allow us to reduce our funding exposure on the
tradiorsdhamentrfbofa specified period of time.
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However, if prepayment rates decrease in a rising interest rate environment, the average life or duration
rateo@ssetBxadthe fixed-rate portion of the ARMs or other assets generally extends. This could have a
nagadiseltisripact operations, as our hedging instrument expirations are fixed and will, therefore, cover a
shraliefursliogneéxgesure on our mortgage assets to the extent that their average lives increase due to slower
prepsjadits. may also cause the market value of our Agency RMBS and CMOs collateralized by fixed rate
hmdmtigh§Bdsr to decline by more than otherwise would be the case while most of our hedging instruments
ayidaeretmeotdleffsetting gains. In extreme situations, we may be forced to sell assets to maintain adequate
tquidisausehishto incur realized losses.

Counterparty Credit Risk

We are exposed to counterparty credit risk relating to potential losses that could be recognized in the
cougtentatistihe our repurchase agreements and derivative contracts fail to perform their obligations under
agobements. The amount of assets we pledge as collateral in accordance with our agreements varies over
tmeentarked \va@lue and notional amount of such assets as well as the value of our derivative contracts. In the
deénilbbg a counterparty, we may not receive payments provided for under the terms of our agreements
diffioultyy dtataéning our assets pledged as collateral under such agreements. Our credit risk related to certain
tfargatitions is largely mitigated through daily adjustments to collateral pledged based on changes in market
lnileoandowuaterparties to registered central clearing exchanges and major financial institutions with
waitegsabieniteditg positions with individual counterparties and adjusting collateral posted as required.
Bloaventeethereffonts to manage counterparty credit risk will be successful and we could suffer significant
lossasciEssful.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report (the “evaluation date”), we carried out an evaluation,
supendsiath@nd with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”)
BhOtiafOfficer (the “CFQ”), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
pedivedlieRule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based on this evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded
oontd@slasdgrprocedures, as designed and implemented, were effective as of the evaluation date (1) in
erfetmagdhatgarding the Company is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
BEQarthGB{Ees, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and (2) in providing
sssswaabéethat information we must disclose in our periodic reports under the Exchange Act is recorded,
puvcessixEd and reported within the time periods prescribed by the SEC’s rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that

Compamyedndosing teat fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
eifesopahy’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not party to any material pending legal proceedings as described in Item 103 of Regulation S-K.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

A description of certain factors that may affect our future results and risk factors is set forth in our

10-KArfioutiie Reporeoddtbbrcember 31, 2020. As of March 31, 2021, there have been no material
tioandjessie met fastofrctors Annual Report on Form 10-K  for the year ended December 31, 2020.
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The table below presents the Company’s share repurchase activity for the three months ended
March 31, 2021.

Shares Purchased Maximum Number

Total Number Weighted-Average  as Part of Publicly of Shares That May Yet

of Shares Price Paid Announced Be Repurchased Under

Repurchaséd Per Share Progranid the Authorizatién

January 1, 2021 - January 31, 2021 - $ - - 837,311
February 1, 2021 - February 28, 2021 - - - 837,311
March 1, 2021 - March 31, 2021 50,577 5.88 - 837,311
Totals / Weighted Average 50,577 $ 5.88 - 837,311

(1) Includes shares of the Company’s common stock acquired by the Company in connection with the satisfaction of tax
watstedldimp | optigatioetated awards under equity incentive plans. These repurchases do not reduce the number of shares
eailatiiasendergthe stadkorization.

(2) On July 29, 2015, the Company's Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 2,000,000 shares of the Company's
Eetmary &to2R18nthe Board of Directors approved an increase in the stock repurchase program for up to an additional
62827 sstmmesarf thtock. Unless modified or revoked by the Board, the authorization does not expire.

The Company did not have any unregistered sales of its equity securities during the three months
ended March 31, 2021.
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit No.

3.1

3.2

3.3
4.1
10.1
311
31.2
32.1

32.2

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Orchid Island Capital. Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1to the
Reuisiatitn Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-184538) filed on November
2Bd2Ad@rporated herein by reference).

Certificate of Correction of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s
Repual on Form 10-K filed on February 22, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference).
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1to the Company’s
Raperiton Form 8-K filed on March 19, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference).

Specimen Certificate of common stock of Orchid Island Capital. Inc. (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the
Reuisiatitn Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-184538) filed on November
2B8d2Ad@rporated herein by reference).

2021 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan*t

Certification of Robert E. Cauley, Chief Executive Officer and President of the Registrant, pursuant to

Segtufrthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certification of George H. Haas. IV, Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant to Section 302
Shithanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certification of Robert E. Cauley. Chief Executive Officer and President of the Registrant, pursuant to
$BMiIS 3350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**

Certification of George H. Haas. |V, Chief Financial Officer of the Reqistrant, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

$eslicis adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**

Exhibit 101.INS XBRL Inline XBRL Instance Document — the instance document does not appear in the

Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL
document.***

Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document ***

Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document***

Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document Created™**
Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document ***

Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document ***

Exhibit 104

Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)

* Filed herewith.

** Furnished herewith.

*** Submitted electronically herewith.

T Management contract or compensatory plan.
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https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001193125-12-483809.html?hash=395ce6d9a0ebde308d31ba8c8cd1790c808ee2b21d34ea2e39d6d047c3851486&dest=D427065DEX41_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001193125-12-483809.html?hash=395ce6d9a0ebde308d31ba8c8cd1790c808ee2b21d34ea2e39d6d047c3851486&dest=D427065DEX41_HTM
https://content.edgar-online.com/ExternalLink/EDGAR/0001193125-12-483809.html?hash=395ce6d9a0ebde308d31ba8c8cd1790c808ee2b21d34ea2e39d6d047c3851486&dest=D427065DEX41_HTM
#ORC10Q20210331X101
#ORC10Q202103331X322_HTM
#ORC10Q202103331X322_HTM
#ORC10Q202103331X322_HTM

Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the
tegistrpott uabalsigrsdisedts behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Orchid Island Capital, Inc
Registrant

Date: April 30, 2021 By: /s/ Robert E. Cauley
Robert E. Cauley
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: April 30, 2021 By: /s/ George H. Haas, IV
George H. Haas, IV
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officer and
Director (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 10.1

ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.

2021 LONG-TERM EQUITY INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

This 2021 Long-Term Equity Incentive Compensation Plan (the “2021 Plan”) sets forth
terms and conditions on which equity awards may be made by Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the
“Company”).

All employees of Bimini Advisors, LLC, which is the Company’s external manager (the
“Manager”), and employees of entities affiliated with the Manager (collectively, the
“Employees”) are eligible to participate in the 2021 Plan. Members of our Manager’s and its
affiliates’ senior management team also serve as the Company’s executive officers, including the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. All of the Employees are
referred to as “Participants.” Being a Participant does not entitle the individual to an award under
the 2021 Plan. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Committee”) will have absolute sole discretion over all aspects of the 2021 Plan, including but
not limited to the ability to reduce the amount of any bonus award or the size of the bonus pool
even if the performance objectives and other terms of the 2021 Plan are satisfied and to adjust
the Company’s book value for purposes of the 2021 Plan due to dilutive issuances of the

Company’s common stock.

Participants will be eligible to earn awards under the 2021 Plan for performance over the
next one-year, three-year and five-year periods. A bonus pool will be established under the 2021
Plan for each of the one-, three- and five-year measurement periods. The amount credited to the
bonus pool will be based on the Company’s performance under each of the three performance
criteria (which are described below) of the 2021 Plan for each of the three measurement periods.
The Committee, in its discretion, will determine each Participant’s award ( i.e. , the percentage of
the bonus pool paid to each Participant).

The maximum amount that may be credited to the bonus pool for each measurement
period will equal the average management fees paid by the Company to the Manager (pursuant
to the terms of the management agreement between the Company and the Manager) for such
period multiplied by the applicable percentage described in the table below. Under the 2021
Plan, the maximum bonus pool for awards to be issued for performance during (i) the one-year
measurement period will equal 20% of the average monthly management fee earned during 2021
multiplied by 12, (ii) the three-year measurement period will equal 35% of the average annual
management fee paid for 2021 through 2023 and (iii) for the five-year measurement period will
equal 45% of the average annual management fee paid for 2021 through 2025.

As noted above, the amount credited to the bonus pool for each measurement period will
reflect the Company’s performance measured against the three performance criteria described
below. The table below illustrates the maximum amount that may be credited to the bonus pool
for each measurement period (as a percentage of the average management fees for the applicable



period). The table also shows the amount that may be credited to the bonus pool for each
measurement period (also as a percentage of the average management fees for the applicable
period) for achievement of objectives with respect to each of the performance criteria. For
example, the maximum amount that may be credited to the bonus pool for the three-year
measurement period based on Agency RMBS rate (as defined below) relative performance is
10.50% of the average management fees paid for 2021 through 2023.

1-year 3-year

Peer-relative financial performance 9.00% 15.75%

S-year
20.25%

Agency RMBS rate relative performance 6.00% 10.50%

13.50%

Peer-relative book value performance 5.00% 8.75%

11.25%

Total for Measurement Periofl 120.00% 335.00%

545.00%

The Committee established the following performance measures and the performance
thresholds that must be satisfied for awards to be earned under the 2021 Plan.

Peer-Relative Financial Performance. No amount will be earned for this performance

measure unless the Company’s financial performance for the applicable measurement period
exceeds the mean of the financial performance of the companies in the Peer Group (defined
below) for the applicable measurement period. The financial performance of the Company and
those in the Peer Group will equal the sum of total dividends paid during the measurement period
and the change in book value during the measurement period divided by the book value on the
first day of the applicable measurement period. The “Peer Group” consists of the following
companies: AGNC Investment Corp., Annaly Capital Management, Inc., Arlington Asset
Investment Corp., ARMOUR Residential REIT, Inc., Capstead Mortgage Corporation, Cherry
Hill Mortgage Investment Corporation, Dynex Capital, Inc. and Invesco Mortgage Capital Inc. In
the event that a company in the Peer Group merges with another entity, sells all or a significant
portion of its business, dissolves, liquidates or the Committee determines that a company has
substantially changed its business in such a way that it no longer conducts a similar business to
the Company’s business, then such company will be removed from the Peer Group for the
measurement period(s) when such event occurs.

Agency RMBS Rate Relative Performance. The Company’s performance under this

performance measure will equal the sum of the change in book value during the applicable
measurement period and total dividends paid during the measurement period. No amount will be
earned for this performance measure unless the Company’s performance as calculated in the
preceding sentence for the applicable measurement period exceeds the Agency RMBS rate
multiplied by the number of years in the measurement period. The “Agency RMBS rate” will
equal the yield on the Fannie Mae 30-year fixed rate current coupon mortgage as of the
beginning of 2021 of 1.342% (determined by averaging the rate as of the last business day of
2020 and the first business day of 2021) plus 400 bps, or 5.342%.




Peer-Relative Book Value Performance. No amount will be earned for this performance
measure unless the Company’s change in book value for the applicable measurement period
(calculated in accordance with the following sentence) exceeds the mean change in book value
for the companies in the Peer Group. The change in book value for the Company and those in the
Peer Group will be determined by subtracting the book value on the first day of the measurement
period from the book value on the last day in the measurement period, with such amount divided
by the book value on the first day of the measurement period.

If the Company’s results for a performance measure equal or are less than the threshold
for a measurement period, no amount will be added to the bonus pool for the measurement
period with respect to that measurement criterion. The table below details the amounts by which
the Company’s performance must exceed the threshold performance measures described above
for the maximum bonus award to be added to the bonus pool. Linear interpolation will be used
for results falling between the threshold and the result that must be achieved to earn the
maximum award.

1-year 3-year S-year
Peer-relative financial performance Threshold + 5.0%| Threshold + 10.0%| Threshold + 15.0%

Agency RMBS rate relative performance | Threshold + 5.0%| Threshold + 10.0%| Threshold + 15.0%

Peer-relative book value performance Threshold + 2.0%| Threshold +4.0%/| Threshold + 6.0%

Awards for these three measurement periods will be paid no later than March 30 of the
year
following the end of the relevant measurement period. The Committee anticipates that 50% of
earned bonuses will be paid in unrestricted shares of the Company’s common stock and 50% will
be paid in the form of “Performance Units,” all of which will be issued under the 2012 Equity
Incentive Plan (the “2012 Plan”). The number of unrestricted shares of the Company’s common
stock and Performance Units to be issued in satisfaction of the earned bonuses will be
determined by dividing the amount of such bonus by the average closing price of the Company’s
common stock on the New York Stock Exchange for the 10 trading days preceding the grant date
of the common stock and Performance Units rounded to the nearest whole number. The
Performance Units will vest at the rate of 10% per quarter commencing with the first quarter
after the one year anniversary of the end of the applicable measurement period, with the
Participant receiving one share of the Company’s common stock for each Performance Unit that
vests. The Participant must continue to be employed by the Company as of the end of each such
quarter in order to vest in the number of Performance Units scheduled to vest on that date. In the
event of a Change in Control (as defined in the 2012 Plan) or the death or disability of the
Participant, all of his or her Performance Units will be vested. When vested, each Performance
Unit will be settled by the issuance of one share of the Company’s common stock, at which time
the Performance Unit shall be cancelled immediately, but in no case later than March 30 of the
year after the year in which the Performance Units vest.

The Performance Units will contain dividend equivalent rights which entitle the

Participants to receive distributions declared by the Company on common stock. One



Performance Unit is equivalent to one share of common stock for purposes of the dividend
equivalent rights. Other than dividend equivalent rights, the Performance Units do not entitle the
Participants to any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company.

The number of outstanding Performance Units will be subject to the following

adjustments prior to the date on which such Performance Unit vests:

Book Value Impairment . A “Book Value Impairment” will occur if over any two
consecutive quarters the following conditions are satisfied: (i) the Company’s book value per
share declines by 15% or more during the first of such two quarters and (ii) the Company’s book
value per share decline from the beginning of such two quarters to the end of such two quarters is
at least 10%. If a Book Value Impairment occurs, then the number of Performance Units that are
outstanding as of the last day of such two quarter period shall be reduced by 15%.

Extraordinary Book Value Preservation . “Extraordinary Book Value Preservation” will
occur in any quarter in which the following conditions are satisfied: (i) the median change in the
book value per share of the companies in the Peer Group (the “Median Book Value Decline”) is
a decline of 6% or more and (ii) the Company’s book value per share either (a) increases or (b)
declines by a percentage that is less than 50% of the Median Book Value Decline. If an event of
Extraordinary Book Value Preservation occurs, then the number of Performance Units that are
outstanding as of the last day of the quarter in which the Extraordinary Book Value Preservation
has occurred shall be increased by 5 basis points for every 1 basis point of difference between
the Company’s book value per share percentage change and the Median Book Value Decline
during such quarter.
Outperform All Peer Companies . The Company will “Outperform All Peer Companies”
in any quarter in which the following conditions are satisfied: (i) the companies in the Peer
Group all experience a decline in book value per share and (ii) the Company’s book value per
share either (a) increases or (b) declines by an amount that is less than the decline experienced by
each company in the Peer Group. If the Company Outperforms All Peer Companies in any
quarter, then the number of Performance Units that are outstanding as of the last day of such
quarter shall increase by 10%.

The Committee anticipates adopting similar plans for future years with modifications to

the performance measures and hurdle rates as the Committee deems appropriate.






Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Robert E. Cauley, certify that:

1. T have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the "registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a -15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a -15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.



Date: April 30, 2021

/s/ Robert E. Cauley

Robert E. Cauley
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and
President






Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, George H. Haas, certify that:

1. Ihave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the "registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as

of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):



a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to

record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 30, 2021

/s/ George H. Haas, IV

George H. Haas, IV
Chief Financial Officer






Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) for
the period ended March 31, 2021 to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about
the date hereof (the "Report™), I, Robert E. Cauley, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C.

Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company at the dates of, and for the periods covered by, the
Report.

It is not intended that this statement be deemed to be filed for purposes of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934.

April 30,2021 /s/ Robert E. Cauley

Robert E. Cauley,
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer






Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) for
the period ended March 31, 2021 to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about
the date hereof (the "Report”), I, George H. Haas, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company at the dates of, and for the periods covered by, the

Report.

It is not intended that this statement be deemed to be filed for purposes of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934.

April 30,2021 /s/ George H. Haas, IV

George H. Haas, IV
Chief Financial Officer






